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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

NOQTICE
NOTICE Is hereby glven that the '27™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING' of the members of UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED
(CIN L17115HR1993PLC032092) will be held on Wednesday, the 30" day of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. zt the
Reglstered office of the Company at 7th KM Stone. Barwala Road, Hisar—125001 to transact the followling business :-
ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the Audlted Financlal Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March,
2020, together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors' thereon.
2. To appoint a director in place of Smt. Shalini Aggarwal {DIN 00248578) who retires by rotation and being

eligible, offers herself for re-appolntment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Toregularize Sh. AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL (DIN-07079171) appointed by the Board as Director
To conslder and, If thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), followIng resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution.
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provislons of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 {Including any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the ime
being in force), if any, Sh. AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL (DIN-07079171) who was appointed as Additional
Dlrector of the Company by the Board of Directors on 13.02.2020 upon the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and who holds office up to the date of ensuing AGM, being
eligible, be and Is hereby regularized and is hereby appointed as Executive Director of the Company whose
period of office shall be liable to retirement by rotation.”

4, Toregularize Sh. AMIT BANSAL {DIN- 08623244} appointed by the Board as an Independent Director.
To conslder and, If thaught fit, to pass, with or without modification{s), following resclution as an Crdinary
Resolution.
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and the
Companies (Appointment and Quallfication of Directors) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, if any, {including any statutory medification(s) or re-enactment(s} thereof, for
the time being In force), the appointment of Sh. AMIT BANSAL {DIN- 08623244) who was appolinted as
Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors on 13.11.2019 upon the recommendation of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and who holds office up to the date of ensuing AGM as an
independent director of the Company, being eligible, be and is hereby regularized as Independent Director
ofthe Company, not llable to retire by rotation, to hald office for a term of 5 {flve) consecutive years l.e. up
toNovember 12, 2024."

5. Toregularize Sh. SANDEEP GARG {DIN- 08522421} appolnted by the Board as an Independent Director
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modificationis), following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution.
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and the
Companles (Appointment and Quallfication of Directars) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time
being in force), Sh. SANDEEF GARG (DIN- 08622421) who was appointed as Additional Director of the
Company by the Board of Directors on 13.11.2015 upon the recommendation of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and who holds office up to the date of ensulng AGM as an Independent director
of the Company, being eligible, be and is hereby regularised, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office
for asecond term of 5 {five) consecutive years i.e. upto November 12, 2024.

6. To approve the remuneration payable to Sh. AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL (DIN-07079171).
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), following resclution as Special
Resolution.
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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

"RESOLVED THAT the Managerial remuneration paid/payable to Mr. Amit Kumar Aggarwal, Director of
the Company, on such terms and conditions, as decided by the Board be and is hereby approved w.e.f. 1"
Aprll, 2020 evenifitisin excess of the limits prescribed under Schedule V of the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directars or a Committee thereof be and is hereby authorized to
alter or vary the remuneration within the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 to the
extent the Board ar Committee thereof may conslider appropriate as may be permitted or authorized in
accordance with the provislons of the Companies Act, 2013 or schedule appended thereto and settle any
question or difficulty in connection therewith and incidental thereto.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Directors of the Company bhe and are hereby authorized to Inform all
concerned of the aforesald alteration In remuneration and to present/file necessary Intimation,
application, notice, papers, forms or any other documents/deeds etc before the competent autharities, if
required, in such form and manner as may be required or necessary and also to do all acts, deeds, things
and matters as may be required or necessary to glve effect to this resolution or as otherwlse consldered by
the Board of Directors to be In the best Interest of the Company, as it maydeem fit.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

REGISTERED OFFICE

7th K.M Stone

Barwala Road, Hisar—125 001

{REENA KUMARI}

Date :31" August, 2020 Company Secretary

CIN : L17115HR1993PLC0O32092

Ph. : 9812761843

Emall : unitedtextilesitd@gmail.com

Website : www.unitedtextileslimited.com

NOTES:-

1. Amember entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the 'Meeting'} is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll, instead of her/him and the proxy need not he a Member of the
Company. The Instrument appolnting proxy should, however, be deposited at the Reglstered Office of the
Company not less than forty eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A proxy form is sent herewith. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 50 (fifty] and
holding In aggregate not more than 10 {ten} percent of the total share capltal of the Company. Provided
that a member holding more than 10 {Ten) percent of the total share capltal of the Company may appolnta
single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other member.

3. The Explanatory Statements to the agenda items 3-6 is annexed hereto

4, Members/Proxies should fill in the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting and bring thelr Attendance
5lps along with thelr copy of the Annual Reportto the Meeting.

5. The Company's Register of Members and Transfer Books will remain closed from Tuesday September 29,
2020 to Wadnesday September 30, 2020 (both days inclusive}.

6. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such Jolnt holder who Is higher In the order of names
will be entitled to vote.

7. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their
representative{s) to atbend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

8. Members who hold shares in electronlc form are requested to write their DP Il and Cllent |D numbers and

those who hold share{s) In physlcal form are requested to write thelr Follo Number In the Attendance Slip
for attending the Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at the Meeting.
9. Relevant documents referred toin the accompanying Notice are open forinspection by the Members at the
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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

10.

11.

12,

13.

15.

Registered Office of the Company on all working days viz. Monday to Friday, between 11.00 A.M. and 1.00
P.M. from dispatch of notice till the date of the Meeting or any adjournment({s) thereof.

At the ensulng Annual General Meeting, Smt. Shallnl Agarwal who Is retiring by rotation, being eliglble,
offers herself for re-appointment.

Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make nomination in respect of
their sharehelding in the Company. The nomination form can be obtained from the Company's Registered
office.

Members who have not reglstered their e-mall addresses so far are requested to register thelr e-mall
address so that they can receive the Annual Report and other communication from the Company
electronically.

Shareholders seeking any Information or clarification on the accounts are requested to send written
guerles to the Company, at least 10 days before the date of the meeting, to enable the management to
keep the required information available at the meeting.

As per Section 108 of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companles (Management and Administration}
Amendment Rules, 2015, the Items of business set out In the attached Notice may be transacted also
through electronic voting system as an altemative mode of voting. The Company is providing the facility of
casting votes through the electronic voting system from a place other than venue of AGM (remote e-
voting) under an arrangement with Natlonal Securities Depository Limited {(“NSDL’) as speciied more
fully in the Instructions hereunder provided that once the vote on a Resolution Is cast, a Member shall not
be allowed to change it subsequently. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members /
list of Beneficial Owners as on Wednesday, 23rd September, 2020, i.e. the cutoff date are entitled to vote
on the Resolutions set forth In this Notice. The Remote e-voting perlod will commence at 9.00 a.m. on
Sunday, September 27, 2020 and wlll end at 5.00 p.m. on Tuesday, September 29, 2020. The Notice of the
Meeting will also be available on the website of the Company i.e. www.unitedtextileslimited.com and on
the wabsite of NSDL i.e, www,evoting.nsdl.com,

The procedure and Instructions fore-voting are asunder:

Step1:Log-In to NSDL e-Voting system

b,

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile,

Once the home page of e-Voting system [s launched, click on the Icon “Login” which 1s avallable under
'Shareholders' section.

A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User | D, your Password and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen. Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-services i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your exlsting IDEAS login. Once you log-In to NSDL eservices after using
your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 [.e. Cast your vote electronically.

Your User |1D details will be as per detzils given below :

For Members who hold shares In demat account with NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
Cllent ID {For example If your DP ID Is IN300*** and Client ID Is 12****** then your user |D Is
|N3miii12tttiiil'

For Maembers who hold shares in damat account with CDSL: 16 Digit Beneficiary |D [For example if
your Beneficiary ID is 12%%¥### #2223 then your user |D j5 12%**¥3deaxnnnks)

For Members holding shares In Physical Form: EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
with the company (For example if follo number |5 001*** and EVEN s 101456 then user ID Is
101456001***),

Your password details are given below:

If you are already reglstered for e-Voting, then you can use your exdsting password to login and cast your
vote.

Ifyou are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the "initial password' which
was communicated to you, Once you retrieve your 'initial password', you need enter the 'initial password'
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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

{n

(ii)

{n
(n
)

(v)

g
h.
i

and the system will force you to change your password,
Howto retrieve your 'Inital password'?

If your email 1D Is registered In your demat account or with the company, your ‘inktial password' Is
communicated to you on your email |D. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the. pdf file is
your 8 dight cllent 1D for NSDL account, last 8 dights of cllent | D for CDSL account or follo number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file contalns your ‘User D" and your 'initial password'.
If Your Email Id Is Not Registered , Please Follow Steps Mentioned Below In Process for those Shareholders
Whose Email lds Are Not Registered,
In case shares are held In physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate {front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to {Company email id).
In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID {16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit
beneficlary 1D), Name, cllent master or copy of Consolldated Account statement, PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to {Company email [d).
Ifyou are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:
Click on “Forget User Details/Password ?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDS5L) option avallable on www.evoting.nsdl.com.
“Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option avallable on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.
If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.In mentioning your demat account number/follo number, your PAN, your name and
your registered address.
Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Condlitlons® by selectingon  the checkbox.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2 : Cast your vota electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

map

®

—aT

After successful login at Step 1, you wlll be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Clickon e-Voting. Then,
click on Active Voting Cycles.

After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select "EVEN” of Companyforwhich youwish to castyourvote.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. for or against, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit® and also "Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.
Once you confirm your vote on the resclution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

eneral Guldellnes for shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (l.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.} are required to send scanned copy
{PDF/IPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
aniljainé4@gmail.com.

It [s strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential. Login to the e-woting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts
to key in the comrect password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User
Details/Password?” or "Physical User Reset Password ?* option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
resetthe password.
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16,

17.

18.

19,

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions {(FAQs) for Members and remote e-
voting user manual for Members avallable at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on
toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request to {Name of NSDL Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in

If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user 1D and
password/PIN for casting yourvote,

You can also update your mablle number and e-mall Id In the user profile detalls of the follo which may be
used for sending future communlcation(s).

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the
Company ason the cut-offdate of 23rd September, 2020,

Any person, who acquires shares and becomes member of the Company after dispatch of the notice and
holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2020, may obtain the login |D and password by
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or pk.mittal@indusinvest.com to RTA INDUS Portfolio Private
Limited. Such members will alsc be provided the notice through mail or by post after the cut-off date on
request.

However, if you are already reglstered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use yourexisting user D
and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using
“Forgot User Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the
following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

A member may participate In the AGM even after exerclsing his right to vote through remote e-voting but
shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
malntalned by the depositorles as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled ta avall the facllity of remote e-
voting aswell as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

Sh. Anil Kumar lain, Practicing Chartered Accountants {Membership No.088037}, has been appointed as
the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members ofthe Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-
voting process Inafalrand transparentmanner.

The Chalrman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held,
allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” for all those members who are
presentat the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall after the concluslon of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the meeting
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses
not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the
AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman
or a person authorized by him In writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the
voting forthwith.

The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of NSDL as soon
as possible after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The
results shall also be communicated to the BSE LUmhed within the time prescribed as per Companles Act,
2013,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
REGISTERED OFFICE
7th .M Stone
Barwala Road, Hisar—125 001

(REENA KUMARI)
Date  :31™ August, 2020 Company Secretary
CIN : L17115HR1993PLC0O32092
Ph. : 9812761843

Email : unitedtextilesltd@gmall.com

Website : www.unltedtextileslimited.com



UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEMNO. 3

Sh. AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL (DIN- 07079171) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company upon the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee with effect from 13" February, 2020, in accordance
with the provislons of Section 161 ofthe Companles Act, 2013, read with the Articles of Assoclation of the Company.

Pursuantto Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office only up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

The Board Is of the view that the appointment of Sh. AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL on the Company's Board of
Directors is desirable and would be beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said Resolution No. 3 to
be passed as an ordinary resolution by the shareholders of the Company.

Sh. Arun Kumar Aggarwal ,5mt. Shalinl Aggarwal and Sh. AmIt Kumar Aggarwal , Directors of the company may be
conslidered as interested In the resolution belng related to each other. Besides him, none of the Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives is in any way concerned or interested, in the said resolution.

ITEM NO. 4

Sh. AMIT BANSAL {DIN- 08623244} was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 13th
November, 2019, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles
of Assoclation of the Company.

Pursuantto Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office only up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, Sh. AMIT BANSAL fulfils the conditions specified in
Section 149 (6} & Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under. Accordingly, the Board
proposes to co-opt Sh. AMIT BANSAL as Independent Director of the Company for a perlod of 5 years with effect
from 13™ November, 2019 upto 12" November, 2024 as set out at ltem No. 4 of this Notice.

Further, in terms of Section 149{13) of the said Act, Sh. AMIT BANSAL shall not be liahle to retire by rotation. Brief
profile of the sald Independent Director, In terms of Regulation 36{3) of the SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 is provided after this Notice.

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution at Item No. 4 of this Notice forthe approval of the Members asan
Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives other than those mentioned in
the resoluticn and their relatives, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

ITEMNO.5

Sh.SANDEEP GARG {DIN-0B622421) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 13th
November, 2019, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles
of Assoclation of the Company.

Pursuantto Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office only up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, Sh. SANDEEP GARG fulfils the conditions specified in
Section 149 (6} & Section 149 (7) of the Companles Act, 2013 and the rules made there under. Accordingly, the Board
proposes to co-opt Sh. SANDEEP GARG as Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect
from 13" November, 2019 upto 12" Novernber, 2024 as set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice.

Further, In terms of Section 149{13) of the sald Act, Sh SANDEEP GARG shall not be llable to retire by rotation. Brief
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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

profile of the said Independent Director, in terms of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 |s provided after this Notice.

The Board accordingly recommends the resolution at Item No. 5 of this Notice for the approval of the Members as an
Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerlal Personnel of the Company or their relatives other than those mentioned In
the resolution and their relatives, are in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

ITEMNO. 6

In view of the capabilities of Sh. AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL [DIN- 07079171) and considering the fact that his
remuneration needs to be fixed, the Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, fixed his remuneration In the committee meeting held on 1% Aprll, 2020 under the
applicable provislons of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, the Company in order to comply with all the applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 in letter and
splrt, Is seeking approval of Members of the Company under Section 197 read with Schedule V and other applicable
provislons, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,

Our Company usually earns sufficient profit every year but some time due to uncontrollable situation therecan be a
fall In the profit of the Company In any financlal year due to which the remuneration payable to Managerial Persans
may exceed the maximum limit of remuneration to be paid to Managerlal Persons given under Section 197 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and under Schedule V of Companies Act, 2013.

Such remuneration is subject to the approval of Members of the Company by way of Special Resolutions. Inthe event
of |loss or Inadequacy of profits In any financlal year(s), during the currency of tenure of above mentioned Dlrector,
the remuneration as mentioned in the resolutionis), shall be paid to them, as minimum remuneration, subject to the
approvals required, if any.

The remuneration, as aforesald, to the Directar, Is subject to the approvals by the Company In a General Meeting In
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V to the said Act. The
resolution(s) set out in the notice are intended for this purpose.

Sh. Arun Kumar Aggarwal ,5mt. Shalinl Aggarwal and Sh. AmIt Kumar Aggarwal , Directors of the company may be
considered as interested in the resolution being related to each other. Besides him, none of the Directors/Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company/their relatives is in any way concerned or interested, in the said resolution.

The Board recommends the special resolution{s) set forth at item nos. & of the Notice for the approval of
the members.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
REGISTERED OFFICE
7th .M Stone
Barwala Road, Hisar—125001
(REENA KUMARI)
Date  :31™ August, 2020 Company Secretary

CIN : L17115HR1993PLC032092
Ph. : 9812761843

Email : unitedtextilesltd@gmail.com

Website : www.unltedtextileslimited.com
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Details of Director seeking appointment/re-appointment/retiring by rotation
{In pursuance of SEBI LODR)

Director Name

Mprs. Shalini Aggarwal

Date of Birth 18/10/1973
Qualification Graduate
Date of Appointment 25/08/2005
Directorship in other Companies as on 31.03.2028 Nil

Relationship with other Directors of the Company

Sh. Amit Kumnar Aggarwal. & Sh. Arun Kumar
Aggarwal are related to Smt. Shalini Aggarwal.

Membership/Chairmanship of Committees of other
public companies as on 31.03.2020

Nil

Shareholding in United Textiles Limited

68600

Director Name

Mr. Amit Kumar Aggarwal

Date of Birth 22/09/1981
Qualification Under Matric
Date of Appointment 13/02/2020
Birectorship in other Companies as on 31.03.2020 | Nil

Relationship with other Directors of the Company

Sh. Arun Kumar Aggarwal & Smt. Shalini Aggarwal
are related to Mr. Amit Kumar Aggarwal.

Membership/Chairmanship of Committees of other
public companies as on 31.03.2020

Nil

Shareholding in United Textiles Limited

17200

Director Name

Mr. Amit Bansal

Date of Birth 21/03/1983
Qualification Graduate
Date of Appointment 13/11/2019
Directorship in other Companies as on 31.03.2020 Nil
Relationship with other Directors of the Company Nil
Membership/Chairmanship of Committees of other .

public companies as on 31.03.2020 Nil
Shareholding in United Textiles Limited Nil

Director Name

Mr. Sandeep Garg

Date of Birth 20/09/1975
Qualification Graduate
Date of Appointment 13/11/2019
Directorship in other Companies as on 31.03.2020 Nil
Relationship with other Directors of the Company Nil
Membership/Chairmanship of Committees of other .

public companies as on 31.03.2020 il
Shareholding in United Textiles Limited Nil
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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members,
UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED,

Your directors have pleasure In presenting the '27th ANNUAL REPORT' together with the Audited Accounts for the year ended
31st March, 2020.

DISCUSSION DN FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE W.R.T. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE {Rs. in Lacs)
PARTICULARS 2019-2020 2018-2019
Revenue from Operafon and Other lncome 845.31 677
Profit/{Loss) before depreciation, nterest & Taxes 59.89 1)
Deprecintion & Amorfizafion Expenses 25.20 30
Finance Cost 2991 25
Profit/{Loss) before Taxes 4.78 1
Provision of Tax/Tax Paid {fncl. Deferred Taxaton) 0.02
Profit/{Loss) after Tax 4.76 -1

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year the company has achieved gross revenue of Rs. 895.31 Lacs as compared to previous year of Rs. 677.34 Lacs. The

company has eamed profit before tax of Rs 4.78 Lacs as compared to prevlous year Profit of Rs. 1.18 Lacs. There has been more

than 32% increase in tumover and the profit is also imprassive as compared to previous year. In the ensuing year, the company has
somewhat sufferred dueto lockdownin the country stilithe perfermance of the company Is llkety to be on higher side.

DIVIDEND

In order to conserve resources by the Company, the Board does not recommend any dividend for the financlal year ended 31st

March, 2020.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDLUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

No unclaimed dividend was required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund In terms of Section 125 of the

Companies Act, 2013

SHARE CAPITAL

The pald up Equity Share Capltal as on March 31, 2020 was Rs.3,00,00,000/-. During the year under review the company has not

issued any shares or any convertible instruments.

RESERVES

The reserve and surplus at the end of the year underreviewls Rs. 743.62 Lac only.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION B ANALYSIS

Management's Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review; as stipulated under regulation 34 of the Securities and

Exchange Board of Indla {Listing Obligations and Disclesure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 {"Listing Regulations”) Is as follows:

Industry Structure and Development

i. The COVID 13 break down in the second half of March affected the overall Industry adversely and all markats have literally
been stopped across the globe. It has led to lockdown and shrinkage In all economles world-wide very sharply. The above
has put alot of pressure on Textile industry in India which was already facing a lot of challenges due to delaysin receiving the
GST refunds as well as delay [n recelving the export benefits. On positive note there Is surge In E-commerce and online
sales.

I Indlan textlle Industry Is facing huge liquidity crunch and uncertainty pertaining to future orders.

Opportunities and Threats

i Currently the biggest threat is COVID 12 and its impact. It is expected that overall textile business will be severely affected
which would result in varlous ob losses across the value chaln.

ii. First half of FY 21 is expected to be very tough and the second half is expacted 1o give some relief to the business and the
soclety In general i all the countries especlally Indla Is able to control the COVID 19 Pandemic.

1. Golng ahead, there could be a posttive side for textlle business as USA and EU customers who will be looking for alternative
for China, may move to other countries such as Vietnam, Bangladesh, Indla, etc. Hence it Is expected that demand will
increase in textile fabrics for exports, but we need to ensure that we prepare ourselves to take the advantage of the
expected business which might drift away from China.
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Iw, There Is some Liguldation problem In the company due to COVID-19 and subsequent lockdown Inthe country. However, the
company has obtalned a loanunderthe scheme "Guaranteed Emergency Credtt Line” to Improve the liquidity posttion.

Segmental Review and Analysls

l. The main Raw Material of our Company Is cotton, which is based on Agricultural production of Cotton. The Production [s
dependent on Monsoon. In Indlan cimatic condition the mensoon Is always an unpredictable factor. Sometimes there Is
heavy rainfall & sometime the drought situation is created, which affects the production of Cotton to a great extert creating
heavy fluctuation In raw material prices. However, the company has somewhat managed situation & earned profit during
theyear.

1. For FY 21, the Immediate focus shall be on the recovery of the outstanding and ensuring the earllest dispatches of the
finished goods invertory to have a tighter control on the working capital and reigning in fuced costs to conserve cash,

Risks and Concams

l. Overall negative Impact Is expected across the Industry due to current COVID 19 pandemic. Also, there could be sharttime
recassionary pressure due to job losses and money crunch in the markat and it will take around 6 to 8 months before we
could see demand coming back Inthe Textlle Industry.

Outlook

l. Overall, FY 21 Is expected to ba a tough year for the textile industry and major focus shall be on cost cutting measures,
improving productivity, reduction in wastage and efforts on taking quality ta next level and deriving efficiency to make
products further cost competitive.

II. Further, the company plans to make some structural changes In organization to make It lean and aglle and focus will be on
giving Improved services to customers to retaln market share.

. Once we are through from the lock-down and the market reopens, the company expects to bounce back ensuring
competitive products along with growing focus on sustainability range of products.

Iv. It Is a testing perod for all of us, but with our good brand Image and network In the market, We expect to be back on track
soon.

INTERNALCONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company malntains an adequate and effective Internal Control Systems commensurate with Its size and complexity. The

Company has in place adequate irmtemal financial cortrols with reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls

were tested and no reportable materlal weakness In the deslgn or operation was observed.

HUMAN RESQOURCE DEVELOPMENT f INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

The industrial relations in all units of the Company continue to be cordial, The skills, experience and passion of our people facilitate

deeper customer understanding and engaglng relationships and strengthen our brand value. We continue to step up efforts to

accelerate our value-based growth strategy and the overall development of human capital. We nurture our people by Investing In

their empowerment through leaming and development, wellness and safety besides providing contemporary workplace fadlities.

Our underlying bellef Is that Human Resource Development today Is about nurturing human resources and leveraging human

capital towards the achievemant of businass goals. The Comparry is committed towards creation of opportunities for its employeas

that help attract, retaln and develop a diverse workforce.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES (I.E. CHANGE AS COMPARED TO IMMEDIATE PREVIOUS FINANCIAL YEAR] IN KEY

FINANCIAL RATIOS

Since there is no significant changes of morethan 25% as compared to the previous year In the varipus financial ratios . Therefore

no comparision Is glven here,

DETAILED EXPLANATION W.R.T. CHANGE IN RETURN ON NETWORTH

The Company has maintained satisfactory performance ratios despite adverse market situation prevailing for a major part of the

year. Retum on Net Worth during the year Isvery much on higherside as compared to the previousyear.

CORPORATE SOCIALRESPONSIBILITY

The company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsihility initiatives as the provisions of section 135 of

the Companles Act, 2013 are not applicable.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has developed & implemented Risk Management Policy. However, Companyhas not come across anyelement of risk

which may threaten the existence of the Company.

VIGILMECHANISM f WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

As required under section 177 {9} of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Boards and its

Powers) 2014 and Regulation 22 & 46{2}(e] of SEBI{LIsting Obligation & Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015 , the Company

has adopted a policy on vigll mechanism/whistle blower. The policy provides direct access ta the Chalmman of the Audit Committee

in case any employee should choose to report or bring up a complaint. The company affirms that no one has been denied access to

the Chalrman of the Audit Committee and also that no complaints were recelved during the year. The mechanism for the same Is

available on the Wehsite of the Company at following link: www.unitedtextileslimited.com.

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
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-Smt.  Shallni Aggarwal, retires by rotation at the ensulng Annual General Meeting and, belng ellgible, offer herself for
reappointment.

-Sh. Anll Kumar Gupta and Sh. Ashok Chhogmal Agarwal have resigned during the year. Sh. Amit Bansal and Sh Sandeep Garg has
joined as Independent Directors. All independent directors have given declaratioh that they meet the criterla of independence as
laid down under section 149{6] of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16{1){b} of SEBI {Listing Obligation And Disclasure
Requirement) Regulation, 2015.Reason for appointment of Sh. Amit Bansal and Sh Sandeep Garg as Independent Directors Is thelr
business expertise inthefield

=During the year Sh. Vinod Kumar Aggarwal has resigned and Sh. Amit Kumar Aggarwal wasappolnted as Director.

-The Board of Directors has duly appointed Company Secretary In the company during theyear.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of companies Act, 2013 and SERI{Listing Obligation And Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015, the
Board has carrled out annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors Individually Including the Independent
Diractors as well the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Remuneration and Share Transfer committea, The manner in which the
evaluation has been carrled out has been explalned In Corporate Governance Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has no subsidiaries, Joint ventures or Assoclate Companles & therefore the Company does not require fillng the
details offinancial performance of Subsidiary/Joint Venture/Associate Company inform AQC-1.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Compamny's Pollcy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerlal remuneration, Directors' qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3} of the Companies Act,
2013 Is published on the webstte afthe Company on www.unltedtextileslimited.com.

MEETINGS

BOARD MEETING

During the year Four Board Meetings and one independent directors’ meeting were held, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,
Secretarial Standards and “SEB| Listing Regulations” were adhered to while considering the time gap between two meetings. The
particulars of meetings held and attended by each Director are detalled Inthe Corporate Govemance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The company is having an audit committee comprising of the following directors:

1. Sh. Anil Kumar Gupta, Chairman Non-Exacutive & Independent Director {upto12.11.19)

2. Sh. Ashok Chhogmal Aggarwal, Member Non-Executive & Independent Director{upto12.11.19)
3. Sh. Arun Kumar Aggarwal, Member Executive Directoriupto12.02.20)

4,  5h,Sandeep Garg,Chalrman Non-Executive & Independent Director{w.e.f. 13.11.18)

5. Sh_Amit Bansal, Member Non-Executive & Independent Directon{w.ef 13.11.19)

6. Sh. Amit Kumar Aggarwal ,Member Executive Director [w.e.f. 13.02.20)

MEETING

Durlng the year Four Audit Commlitee Meetings were held, the provisions of Companles Act, 2013, Secretarfal Standards and “SEBI
Listing Regulations” were complied In this respect. The particulars of meetings held and attended by each Director are detalled In
the Corporate Governance Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company Is having a Nomination & Remuneration Commtttee comprising of the following directors :

1.  Sh.AshokChhogmal Aggarwal, Chalrman Non-Executive & Independent Director fupto12.11.19)

2. Sh.Anll Kumar Gupta, Member Nan-Executive & Independent Director (upto 12.11.19)

3.  Sh.AmitBansal, ,Chairman Non-Executive & Independent Director [w.e.f 12.11.19)

4,  Sh.Sandeep Garg, Member Non-Executive & Independent Director (w.e.f. 13.11.19)

5.  5mt. Shalinl Aggarwal, Member Non-Executive Director

MEETING

During the year one Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meetings was held, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,
Secretarial Standards and “SEBI Usting Regulations” were complled In this respect. The particulars of meetings held and attended
by each Director are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The company Is having a Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprising of the following directors

Sh. Anil Kumar Gupta, Chalrman Nan Executive & Independent Director{upto 12.11.19)

Sh. Arun Kumar Aggarwal, Member Executive director [upto12.11.19)

Smit. Shalini Aggarwal, Member Non Executive Director{up to .12.02.20)

Sh. Sandeep Garg,Chalman Non-Executive & Independent Director{w.e.f 13.11.19)

Sh. Amlt Bansal, Member Non-Executive 8 Independent Director{w.ef.13.11.19)

Sh. Amit Kumnar Aggarwal ,Member Executive Director fw.e.f. 13.02.20}

(11)

Ll ol ol ol o



UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

MEETING

During the year two Stakeholder Relationship Committee Meetings was held, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Secretarial

Standards and "SEBI Listing Regulations” were complled In this respect. The partculars of meetings held and attended by each

Diractorare detailed inthe Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant tosection 134 (5) of the Companles Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of thelr knowledge

and ability ,confimthat

a) in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable accounting
standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to materlal departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and applied
consistently and Judgment and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and falr view
ofthe state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficlent care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other Irregularities;

d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a golng concemn basls;

a} that systemns to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating

effectively.

fi that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating
effectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review no related party transactions that were entered. There are no materially significant related party
transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerlal Personnel or other deslgnated persons or entitles
which may have a potential conflict with the irterest of the Company at large. Therefora the provisions of Sub Section 1 of Section
188 read with Sub-Section {3) of Section 134 and Rule 2(2) of the {Companies Accounts} Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the
Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES

There are no significant material changes during the year which would impact the going concern status of the Company and fts
future operations. There was complete lockdown In the country due to COVID -19 due to which plant remalned shut down for
almost 2 months which has affected the operation of the company .However, there is no substantial impact on the going concern
status of the Companyand Its future operations.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL QORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts which would impact the going concem status of the
Company and Its future operations.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/S P.C. GOYAL & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No-002358N) was appointed as Statutory Audttor of the Compary &
now consernted for re appointment. The board recommends their continuance as Statutory Auditors for the ensuing year.
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companles Act, 2013 and the Companies { Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appoirtted Ms. Anju Jain {CP No.: 2728, ACS No: 11056}, Company Secretary
to undertake the secretarlal audit of the company. The Secretarfal Audit Report Is annexed herewith as 'Annexure 1'. The Secretarlal
Audit Raport does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark which needs any explanation in the Directors
Report.

AUDITORS OBSERVATIONS

The auditar's ohservations being self explanatory have been duly explained inthe notes to the accourts.

FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITOR

Nofraud reported by the Auditor for the perlod underreview.

DEPOSITS

The company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

COSTAUDITORS AND COST AUDIT REFORT:

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with The Companles {Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the accounts
and records are not required to be maintained by the Company.

INSURANCE

The Company's propertles have been adequately Insured.

COMPLIANCE OF GUIDELINES OF SEBI/STOCK EXCHANGE

We have duly complied with all the guidelines issuaed by SEBI/Stock Exchange. Further the company has also Obtained the
secretarfal compliance report from the Company Secretary In Practice under which varlous Compllances of BSE /SEBI have been
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reported In detall and duly submitted to BSE.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Gevernance and adhere to the Corporate Govemance
requirements set out by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (*SEBI). The Company has also Implemented several best
governance practices, Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 15 of Securitles and Exchange Board of Indla [Listing obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Company is exemgt from filing or annexing the report on Corporate Governance with
the Annual Report and also exempted from the requirement of certificate elther from the auditors or practicing company
secretarfes regarding compllance of conditions of corporate governance, baut still In order to maintaln the standards of governance
and compliances the Company has given report on Corporate Governance forming the part of annual retum.
ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
The Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign axchange earnings and outgo stipulated under
Section 124{3}{m) of the Companies Act, 2012 read with Rule, 8 of The Companies [Accounts} Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as
‘Annexure 2',
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
As stipulated under the regulation 24 of the Listing Regulations, the Business Responsibility Report is mandatory for the top 1000
listed entitles based on market capltalization {calculated as on March 31 of every financlal year) and our company 1s not covered In
abowve criteria. Hence, notrequired to Include the Business Responsibllty Statement.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The detalls forming part of the extract of the Annual Return In form MGT -9 1s glven on website www.unitedtextileslimited.com.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS
The Company has not given any loan or provided any guarantee or made any investment coveraed under section 196 of the
Companles Act, 2013.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
A The Company has not appointed any employee(s) in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits specified under Rule 5 {2)
of Companies [Appolntment & Remuneration of Managerlal Personnel) Rules, 2014,

B. DETAILS REGARDING REMUNERATION OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY
Pursuant to Rule 5{2) of Companles (Appoirtment and Remuneration of Managerial Persaonnel} Rules, 2014 detalls of the top ten
employees In terms of remuneration drawn are attached with this report as'Annexure 3",
DISCLOSURE IN TERMS OF THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL] ACT, 2013
The company has In place a Pollcy for prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace In line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevantion, Prohibition & Redressal ) Act, 2013,
Intemal Complalnts Committee (ICC} has been set up to redress complalnts recelved regarding sexual harassment. All employees
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered underthis policy.
The Company takas all necessary measures to ensure a harassmert-free workplace and has instituted an Imternal Complairts
Committee for redressal of complaints and to prevent sexual harassment. Durlng the year, there were no complaints relating to
sexual harassment.
SECRETARIALSTANDARDS
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, ie. $5-1 and $5-2, relating to "Meetings of the Board of Directors' and
'General Meetings', respectively, have been duly followed by the Company.
ACKNOWLEDGMENT
Your directors are pleased to place on record their sincere gratitude to the Government Autharities, Financial Institutions, Bankers,
Shareholders, Customers, Dealers and Vendors for thelr continued and valuable co-operation and support tothe Company.
Your directors express thelr deep appreclation for the devoted and sincere efforts put in by the members of the team at all levels of
operations In the Company during the year. The company feels confldent of contihued co-operation and efforts from them Infuture
also.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
REGISTERED OFFICE:
TthK.M. Stone
BarwalaRoad, Hisar—125001

Shalinl Aggarwal ArunKumarAggarwal
Date :16th luly, 2020 {Dlrector) {Executive Directar}
Ph. : 9812761843 DIN=-00248510 DIN-D0248578
CIN : L17115HR1993PLC0O32092
Email : unitedtextilesltd@gmail.com
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Annexure -1
FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
[Pursuant to section 204{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED,

7th K.M.STONE, BARWALA ROAD,
Hisar-125001 (Haryana)

| have conducted the Secretarlal Audit of the compllance of applicable statutory provislons and the adherence to good corporate

practices by UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED {CIN : L17115HR1993PLCD32092}] (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit

was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory complines and

expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns flled and other records maintained by

the Company and also the Information provided by the Company, Its officers, agents and authorlzed representatives during the

conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Campany has, during the audit period covering the financial

year ended on March 31, 2020 ("Audit Period") complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company

has proper Board-processes and compllance mechanism In place to the extent, In the manner and subject to the reporting made

herelnafter.

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns flled and other records maintalned by the Company for the

financial year ended on March 31, 2020 according to the provisions of :

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act} and the rules made there under;

[{l)] The Securlties Contracts (Regulatfon} Act, 1956 {'SCRA') and the rules made there under;

{}  TheDeposttorles Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

{iv]  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
Invastment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Bormrowings;

[{] The following Regulations and Guldelines preseribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of Indla Act, 1992 ['SEBI

Act'):
4.  TheSecurltiesand Exchange Board of Indla {Substantlal Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
b.  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
t.  TheSecurities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
d.  The Securities and Exchange Board of Indla {Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase

Scheme) Guldelines, 1999 and The Securftles and Exchange Board of Indla (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014;{Not applicable to the Company during the AudH Perlod);

e. The Securities and Bxchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit Perlod);

f The Securltles and Exchange Beard of Indla {Reglstrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993
regarding the Companles Act and dealing with cllent;

g  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 {Not applicable to the
Companyduring the Audit Period); and

h.  The Securities and Exchange Board of Indla (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audlt Perlod).

{vi} OTHER APPLICABLE ACTS;
a. Factories Act, 1948;
b. Industrial Disputeas Act, 1947;
c Payment of Wages Act, 1936;
d. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
a. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948;
f The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
& The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
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The Industrlal Employment [Standing Orders) Act, 19486;

Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972;

The Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923;

Air {Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

Water [Prevention & Control of Pollution} Act, 1974;

Hazardous Waste (Management & Handling} Rules, 1989;

Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemical Rules, 1989;

Envirgnment (Protection) Act, 1986;

| have also examined compliance with the appliable clauses of the following:
{l) Secretarlal Standards [ssued by The Institute of Company Secretarles of Indla.
{ll} The Securlties and Exchange Board of Indla (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has complledwith the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guldellnes, Standards

etc.as mentioned above.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

1. Maintenance of secretarial records Is the responsiblilty of the management of the Company. My responsibliity Is to exprass
anopinlon on these secretarlal records based on myaudit;

2, | have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
commectness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that cormeet facts
are reflected In secretarial records. | belleve that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basls for my

LIEN Tl e

opinlon;

3. | have not verified the comactness and appropriateness of financlal records and Books of Accounts of the Company or
examined any books, information or statements otherthan Books and Papers.

4, Ihave notexamined any ather spedific laws exceptas merntioned above.

5. Wherever required , | have obtalned the Management Representation about the compllance of laws, rules and regulation
and happening of events etc;

6. The compllance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibiltty
of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis;

7. The Secretarial Audit report Is nefther an assurance as to the future viabillty of the Company nor of the efficacy or
effectiveness withwhich the management has conducted the affalrs of the Company;

Ifurther report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and

Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that teok place during the period under review

were carried out In compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice Is given to all Directors to schedule the Board

Meetings, agenda and detalled notes on agenda were sent at least seven days In advance, and a system exists for seeking and

abtalning further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the

meeting. All dedisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the

meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, asthe case mayba.

1 further raport that there are adequate systems and processes In the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the

company to monitorand ensure compllance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guldelines

Place-Hisar
Date -17/06/2020 CS Anju Jain
Company Secretary in Practice
ACS No. : 11056
CPNo.: 2728
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ANNEXURE -2
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
The following measures have been taken by the company for conservation of energy:-
1. We have replaced the old machines with new modemized fully automatic andcomputerised machines by
which power consumption have been reduced by at least 15% as compared to previous machines.
2. Improving power factor by proper cholce of capacitors from time to time depending upon the load.
3.  Utilising the proper load of plant and equipments, electric motors ete.
4.  Reducing the maximum demand by properly distribution of load.
B. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT {R&D} CURRENT PREVIOUS
YEAR YEAR
Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the company
Benefits derived as a result of the above R & D.
Future plan of action
4., ExpenditureonR&D:
a) Capitzal
b} Recurring
¢} Total
d} Total R & D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover

WM

NIL NIL

TECHNQLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION

1. Efforts, In brief, made towards technelogy absorption,
adaptation and innovation.

2. Beneflts derlved as a result of the above efforts, e.g.,
production, product development Import substitution etc.
In case of imported technology (imported during the last NIL NIL
5 years reckoned from the heginning of the financlal
year following Information may be furnished]).

a} Technology imported.

b} Year of import.

¢} Has technology been fully absorbed

d} If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place
reasons therefore and future plans of action

C. FOREIGNEXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

a}  Activitiesrelating to exports; initiative taken to increase
export; development of new export markets for products
and services; and export plans as per the note no.26 Part A
of Financial S$tatement

NIL NIL

Mt st et Mmed baet st st Ml bl Ta® T’ Mt Mt e Tt et faet st T’ el bmead Ta® s’ Mt Ml Tt T’ faet bt st el bmad b

h}  Totalforelgnexchange earned ) NIL NIL
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Annexure - 3
Detalls Regarding Remuneration of Top Ten Employees of the Company
{Pursuant to Rule 5{2) of Companies [Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

AS ON 31.03.2020
S. Name & Age of | Qualificati | Designation Remun | Nature & Detail % age of Name of
No. | Employee& on eration | Date of of Last | shares Director
Nature of &Experien (in Commence Employ | held by related to
employment ce of the INR) ment of ment employee | employee,
(Contractual or | Employee Employment alongwith | if any.
permanent) relatives
1 | Rajender Kumar | B.Tech (36) MANAGER 242064 | 01.05.201% NA 0 NO
Mehta (61)
Permanent
2 Devender 8th {26} M/C 226389 | 01.05.201% NA 0 NO
kumar {48} OPERATER
Permanent
3 Wivek({37) 8th {15} M/C 197474 | 01.08.2017 NA 0 NO
Permanent OPERATER
4 Chandan{2&} 8th {5} M/C 195082 | 01.08.2017 NA 0 NO
Permanent OPERATER
5 Sunder GRADUATE | ACCOUNTANT| 103770 | 01.03.2007 NA 0 NO
Singh{52} {30}
Permanent
6 Munu{37} 8th {12} Electrician 77281 11.11.2014 NA 0 NO
Permanent
7 Anoop ACS4 Company F0832 08.06.2019 WA o MO
kumar(35) YEARY11) Secretary
Permanent
8 Sat Naryan{41} 8th {20} M/C 67556 22.10.2017 NA 0 NO
Permanent OPERATER
9 Abdul Halim B.Tech {23} MANAGER 60467 01.02.2020 NA 0 NO
Anszari (58)
Permanent
10 Krishan 10™{23) M/C 60049 01.12.2016 NA 0 NO
Kumar{d&} OPERATER
Permanent

Corporate Governance Report for the Financlal Year 2019-2020
This report Is prepared In accordance with the provisions of the Securitles and Exchange Board of Indla (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requlrements) Regulations, 2015 {Listing Regulations), and the report contains the
detzils of Corporate Governance systems and processes at United Textiles Limited.
At cur Company, Corporate Governance is all about maintaining a valuable relationship and trust with all
stakeholders. We conslder stakeholders as partners In our success and we remaln committed to maximizing
stakeholders' value, be It shareholders, employees, suppliers, customers, investors, communities or pollcy makers.
This approach to value creation emanates from our belief that sound governance system, based on relationship and
trust, is integral to creating enduring value for all. We have a defined policy framework for ethical conduct of
husinesses. We bhelleve that any business conduct can be ethical only when k rests on the six core values viz.
Customer Value, Ownership Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One Team and Excellence.
COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :
Corporate Governance encompasses a set of systems and practices to ensure that the Company’s affairs are being
managed In a manner which ensures accountability, transparency and falrness in all transactions In the widest sense.
The objective is to meet stakeholders’ aspirations and socletal expectations.
The basic philosophy of corporate governance in the company is:-
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Fair and transparent business practices.

Effective Management Control by Board.

Compllance of laws.

Transparent and timely disclosure of Financlal and Management Information.

Adequate representation of Promater, Executive and Independent Directors on the Board.

Accountability for performance.
ETHICS / GOVERNANCE POLICIES
At our Company, we strive to canduct our business and strengthen our relationships In a manner that Is dignified,
distinctive and responsible. We adhere to ethical standards to ensure integrity, transparency, independence and
accountzbility in dealing with all stakeholders. Therefore, we have adopted various codes and policies to carry out
our duties [n an ethical manner. The policles adopted by the Company Is placed on the webslte of the company on
wwww.unitedtextileslimited.com.
CODE OF CONDUCT
The Company has in place a comprehensive Code of Conduct and Our Code (the Codes)applicable to the Directors
and employees. The Codes glve guldance and support needed for ethical conduct of business and compllance of law.
The Codes reflect the core values of the Company viz. Customer Value, Ownership Mindset, Respect, Integrity, One
Team and Excellence.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
Our Company malntalns the highest standards of Corporate Governance. It Is the Company's constant endeavourto
adopt the best Corporate Govermnance practices keeping in view the International codes of Corporate Governance
and practices of well-known global companies.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The slze and composition of the Board conflrms to the requirements of the code on Corporate Governance underthe
SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATION & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATION, 2015 with BSE Limited, Mumbal.
During the Financial Year 2019-2020, the Board of Directors met 4 times on: 30.05.2015, 13.08.2019, 13.11.2019 &
13.02.2019.

{a) Constitution of the Board and related information

No. of Board Last Number of |No. of membership/
Meetings Annual | Directorshi| chairmanshipin
During The General | psinother other Board
Name of Director Category Year 2019-2020| Meeting Public_ Committee
Attended | Companies
Held an i
Held | Attended 28" Sept Chairman | Member
2019
Sh. Arun Kumar Promoter and 4 4 Yes 0 0 2
s Executive Director
Smt. Shalini Aggarwal Mon-Executive 4 4 Yes 0 0 2
* DIN-00248578 Director
Sh. Vinod Kumar Non-Executive 3 3 Yes 0 0 0
Aggarwal Director
*DIN-01614768
{up to 12.02.2020)
Sh. Anil Kumar Gupta Mon-Executive & 2 1 NO 0 2 1
DIN- 06726726 Independent Director
{upto 12.11.19)
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Sh. Ashok Chhogmal Mon-Exacutive & 2 NO 1 1
Aggarwal Independent Director
DIN-07011524
{upto 12.11.19)
Sh. Amit Kumar Promoter and 1 NO 0 2
Aggarwal Executive Director
DIN-07079171
{w.e.f.13/02/2020)
Sh. Amit Bansal Non-Executive & 2 NO 1 2
DIN- 08623244 Independent
{w.e.f.13/11/2019) Director
Sh. Sandeep Garg Mon-Exacutive & 2 NO 2 1
DIN- 08622421 Independent
{w.e.f.13/11/2019) Director

* Sh. Arun Kumnar Aggarwal , Smt. Shalini Aggarwal , Sh. Vinod Kumar Aggarwal and Sh. Amit Kumar Aggarwal are

related to each other,

As required by the Companles Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the directors

Hold directorship In more than 10 public companies or
Independent Directorship in more than 7 listed companies or
Holding whole time Directorship along with holding Independent Directorship in more than 3 Listed

Holding membership of committees of the Board in excess of 10{Audit Committee/ stakeholders Relationship
committee) orchairmanship of 5 committees of the Board.

During the year, information as mentioned in Schedule I1 Part A of the SEBI Listing Regulations has been
placed before the Board for [ts conslderation.

The company issued formal letters of appointment to independent directors in the manner as provided inthe

The independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the
The company has formulated a policy to famillarize the independent directors with the company, their roles,

rights, responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business model
of the company, etc,, through various programs. Such familiarization program is available at

1
2.
3.
companlesor
4.
Companies Act, 2013.
management.
www.unltedtextileslimited.com
{b) independentDirectors Meeting

As required under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations a separate meeting of Independent
Directors of the Company was held on 18th March, 2020, Both the Independent Directors viz, Sh. Amit Bansal
& Sh. Sandeep Garg have attended the meeting.

The Independent Directors, Inter-alia, reviewed the performance of non-Independent directors, Chairman of
the Company and the Board as awhole.

Shareholding of Mon-Executive Director

5 No. Name of the Director No. of Shares held
1 Sh. Ashok Chhogmal Aggarwal{up t0.12.11.2019) Nil
2 Smt. Shalini Aggarwal 68600
3 Sh. Anil Kumar Gupta (up t0.12.11.2019) Nil
4 Sh Vinod Kumar Agarwal {(up t012.02.2020) 96800
5 5h. Amit Bansal {w.e.f.13.11.2019) Nil
6 Sh. Sandeep Garg {(w.e.f13.11.2019) Nil
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{C) Coda of Conductfor Board membaers and Senior Management

The Board of Directors has laid down the code of conduct for all the Board members and members of the Senior

Management of the Company. Additionally all Independent directors of the company shall be bound by duties of

Independent directors as set out In the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Schedules and Rules thereunder.

All the Board members and Senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct.

{d) Disclosure of Directors Inter-se Relationships

Sh. Arun Kumar Aggarwal, Smt. Shallnl Aggarwal, Sh. Vinod Kumar Aggarwal & Amit Kumar Aggarwal are related to

each other.

{e) Parformance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulation, a separate exercise was carried

out to evaluate the performance of Individual Directors Including the Chalrman of the Board who were evaluated on

parameters such as level of engagement and contribution and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the

interest of the Company. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire

Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the

Independent Directors. The board also carrled out annual performance evaluation of the working of ks Audit,

Remuneration as well as Share Transfer & shareholders/investors grievances committee. The Directors expressed

their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

(f) Conflict of Interasts

Each Director Informs the Company on an annual basls about the Board and the Committee posttions he occuplesin

other Companies including Chairmanships and notifies changes during the year. The Members of the Board while

discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the decision making process. The Members of the Board restrict

themselves from any discussions and voting in transactions in which they have concern or interest.

{g)Insider Trading Code

The Company has adopted Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in accordance with the requirements of

the SEBI {Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has also formulated The Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price

Sensitive Information {UPSI}' In compllance with SEBI {Prohlbition of Inslder Trading} Regulations, 2015.

{h} Policy for Preservation of Documents

In accordance with regulation 9 of SEBI {Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015 the board

has during the year adopted a policy for preservation of documents.

{1} Policy for Determination of Materlality of the Disclosure of Events & Information

In accordance with regulation 30{4) of SEBI {Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 a

policy has been adopted regarding disclosures of any events or information which, in the opinion of the board of

directors is material.

{1} Archival Policy

In accordance with regulation 30(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 an

archival policy has been adopted during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The terms of reference of Board Commilttees are determined by the Board from time to time. Presentlythe Company

has three committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship

Committee. All the decisions pertaining to the constitution of the Committees, appointment of members, and fixing

of terms of reference for committee members are taken by the Board of Directors. Details on the role and

composlition of these committees, Including the number of meetings held during the financlal year and the related

attendance, are provided below:

[a) AuditCommittea

1 The audit committee of the Company is constituted In line with the provislons of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing

Regulations, read with Section 177 of the Act.

2. The terms of reference of the audit committee are broadly as under:

i. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company's internal
controls and financial reporting process The Committee acts as a link between the Management, Audltors and
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the Board of Directors of the Company and has full access to the financlal Information.

Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible and ensuring timely submission to
statutory authorities.

ReviewIng the Management Discusslon & Analysls of financlal and operational performance.

112 Reviewing with the management, the quarterly financial statements and annual financial statements and
auditor's report thereon before submission to the board for approval.

V. Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the company's system and internal control.

vl Evaluation of Internal financlal controls and risk management systems.

vii. Toreviewthefunctioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

Audit & other dutles

I. Discusslon with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audht discusslon to ascertaln any area of concern.

il. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.

iii.  Review and recommend to the Board the appointment/re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors and
Internal Auditors consldering theirindependence and effectiveness and their replacement and removal.

.  Torecommendtothe Board the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors and Internal aud|tors.

V. To grant approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and on an arms

length pricing basis and to review and approve such transactions subject to the approval of the Board.

The Audit Committee has three members at a time as per the detalls glven In the Director Report supra. All
Members of the Audit Committee are financlally literate.

During the Financial Year 2019-20, the Audit Committee met 4 times on 20.05.2019, 08.08.2019, 09.11.201% &
11.02.2020. The attendance of the members of the Committee is given below:

Committee Members Category No. of Audit Committee

Meetings Attended

Sh. Anil Kumar Gupta Non-Executive, Independent Director 3
{up10.12.11.2019)

Sh. Ashok Chhogmal Aggarwal | Non-Executive, Independent Director 3
{up10.12.11.2019)

Sh. Arun Kumar Aggarwal Executive Director 4
{upto .12.02.2020)

Sh. Amit Kumar Aggarwal

{w.e.f13.11.2019)

{w.ef.13.02.2020) Executive Director 0
Sh. Amit Bansal Non-Executive, Independent Director 1
{w.ef13.11.2019)

Sh. Sandeep Garg Non-Executive Independent Director 1

{b}

Nominaticn & Remuneration Committee

The nominaten and remuneration committee of the Company Is constituted in line with the provisions of

Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 178 of the Act.

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial
personnel and others;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

Identifying persons who are quallfied to become directors and who may be appolnted In senior management
Inaccordance with the criteria lald down, and recommend to the Board thelr appointment and removal.
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The remuneration policy as adopted by the company envisages payment of remuneration according to quallfication,
experience and performance at different levels of the organization. The workers at the factory as well as those
rendering clerical, administrative and professional services are suitably remunerated according to the industry
norms. The Committee comprises of following members.

The committee met once durlng the year on 04.04.2019 and was attended by all the three members as per the detall
given below

Committee Members Category No. of Committee
Meetings Attended
Sh. Anil Kurnar Gupta Non-Executive, Independent
{up 10.12.11.2018) Director 1
Sh. Ashok Chhogmal Aggarwal Non-Executive, Independent
{upto.12.11.2018) Director 1
St Shalini Aggarwal Non -Executive Director 1

Sh. Amit Bansal

{w.e£13.11.2019) Non-Executive, Independent

Director

Sh. Sandeep Garg Non-Executive, Independent 8]
{w.2.f13.11.2019) Director

Remuneration Pollcy: The Whole Time Director is paid remuneration approved by the Board of Directors on the
recommendation of Remuneration Committee. The remuneration so approved is subject to the approval by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and such other authorities as the case may be. The Non-Executive
Directors do not draw any remuneration from the company.

Performance evaluation criterla for Directors: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised a criterla
for evaluation of the performance of the Directors including Independent Directors. The said criteria provides
certain parameters like attendance, acquaintance with business, communication inter se between board members,
effective participation, domaln knowledge, compllance with code of conduct, vislon and strategy, benchmarks
established by global peers etc., which Is in compllance with applicable |aws, regulations and guldelines. The detall
relating to remuneration of Directors ,as required under regulation 34 read with Schedule 5 of the Listing Regulation
,have been given hereunder. However, The Executive Director Sh. Arun Kumar Aggarwal has decided to Forego his
salaryto strengthen the profitabllity of company

Remuneration pald to 5h. Arun Kumar Aggarwal, Executive Director for the FY. 2019-2020

| Salary | Nil |

Note : None of the non-executive directors has any pecuniary relationship or transaction vis-a-vis the company.

[c} StakeholderRelationship Committea

In terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements)Regulations 2015 and erstwhlle Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the Board re-named the then
'Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee' as the "Stakeholders Relationship Committee'.

The bread terms of reference of the stakeholders' relationship committee are as under:

{i) Consider and resclve the grievances of security holders of the Company including redressal of investor
complalnts such as transfer or credit of securlties, non-recelpt of dividend / notice / Annual reports, etc.
and all other securities-holders related matters.

{ii} Consider and approve issue of share certificates (including issue of renewed or duplicate share
certificates), transfer and transmission of securities, etc.

{lh} The commilttee consists ofthe following Directors as its members:

1. Sh. Anil Kumar Gupta, Chairman Non Executive & Independent Director {upto 12.11.19)
2 Sh. Arun Kumnar Aggarwal, Member Executive Director {upto12.11.19)
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3 Smt, Shalini Aggarwal, Member Non Executive Director {upto.12.02.20}

4, Sh. Sandeep Garg,Chalrman Non-Executive & Independent Director {w.e.f. 13.11.19)

5. Sh .Amit Bansal, Member Non-Executive & Independent Director (w.e.f. 13.11.19)

6. Sh. Amit Kumar Aggarwal , Member Executive Director {w.e.f. 13.02.20)

No Complaint Received from any Investor During the Year.

The Committee met twice duringthe financial yearon 29.01.20 & 27.02.20. The attendance of the members of the
Committee Is glven below:

No. of Stakeholders Relationship

Committee Members Category Committee Meeting Attended
Sh. Anil Kurmar Gupta
fupto 12.11.19) Chairman Non-Executive, , Independent Director
Senit. Shalin Aggarwal . .
{up to 12.02.20) MNorn-Executive Director 1
Sh. Arnit Kurnar Aggarwal,
{w.e.f.13.02.2020) Executive Director 1
Sh. Arnit Bansal, 2
fw.e.£.13.11.2019) Non-Executive, Independent Director
Sh .Sandeep Garn

P & Chairman Non-Executive, Independ ent Director 2

fw.2.£13.11.2019)

Sh. Arun Kurnar Aggarwal
fup to 12.11.2019)

{a) COMPLIANCE
The Company Secretary, while preparing the agenda, notes on agenda and minutes of the meeting(s}, Is
responsible for and Is required to ensure adherence to all applicable laws and regulations, Including the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(b} RECORDING MINUTES OFPROCEEDINGS AT BOARD ANDCOMMITTEE MEETINGS
The Company Secretary records minutes of proceedings of each Board and Committee meeting. Draft
minutes are circulated to Board / Committee members for their comments as prescribed under the
Secretarial Standard-1. The minutes are entered in the Minutes Bock within 30 days from the conclusion of
the meeting.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTVENTURES AND ASS0CIATE COMPANIES

The Company has no subsidiaries, Joint ventures or Associate Companies & therefore the Company does not

require filing the details of financial performance of Subsidiary/loint Venture/Associate Company inform AQOC-1.

CEQ/CFO CERTIFICATION

In terms of Regulation 17{8) of SEBI Listing Regulation, the chlef executive officer and the chlef financial officer

shall provide the compliance certificate to the board of directors as specified in Part B of Schedule 11 of the said

regulation. In terms of Regulation 33(2){a) of SEBI Listing Regulation, the CEQ & CFO certified the quarterly

financial results while placing the financlal result before the Board.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in

securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company.

DIRECTORS' PROFILE

A brlef resume of Directors, nature of thelr expertise In specific functional areas are put up on the Company's
website i.e. www.unitedtextileslimited.com

DISCLOSURES

The Company has adopted a Related Party Transaction Policy. The transactions with related parties are monitored

IMernber Executive Director

(23)



UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

In accordance with the policy. There were no materlally significant related party transactions that would have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. Details of related party transactions are given
elsewherein the Annual Report as per Accounting Standard .

itIs confirmed that:

>

No penalty or strictures have been Imposed on the Company by any Stock Exchange or SEBI or any Statutory
Authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years. However, the company was
placed under the list of shell companies, which was later on removed by BSE. Further the Company has
received certain letterfrom BSE forsome Technical lapses which were duly replied by the Company.

> A Whistle Blower Pollcy Is adopted by the Company, the whistle blower mechanism Is In vogue and no
personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.
»  There has been no deviation from the Accounting standards in preparation of annual accounts for the financial

year 2019-20.

»  All the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as prescribed under SEBI Listing Regulation have
been duly complied with.

»  The Board has obtained certificates/disclosures from key management personnel confirming they do nothave
any material financlal and commercial Interest in transactions with the company at large.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The location, date and time, where last three Annual General Meetings were held :

Year Location Date Time
2016-2017 . - . . Friday,29.09.2017 11.00 AWM.
2017-2018 7th K.M. Stone Barwala Road, Hisar— 125001 Saturday, 29.09.2018| 11.00 A.M.
2018-2019 7th K.M. Stone Barwala Road, Hisar- 125001 Saturday,28.09.2019 | 11.00A.M.

The details of special resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings:
5r. No. Date of AGM Item of Special Resolution
1 29.09.2017 None
2 29.09.2018 None
3 28.09.2019 Two Independent Directors were Re-
Appointed

No resolution was passed through postal ballot last year.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Board of Directors of the Company approves and takes on record the annual, half-yearly and quarterly Financial
Results In the proforma prescribed by the Stock Exchanges. These results are promptly submitted to BSE Umited,
Mumbal, where shares of the company are listed, The same are also published in national and regienal newspapers
Vypar Bharti (Regional Language) & The Pioneer {English Language).

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

27" Annual General Meeting

Day, Date & Time :  Saturday, 30" September, 2020 at 11.00A.M.

Venue :  7"K.M.Stone, Barwala Road, Hisar {Haryana)

Financial Year 1 1"April, 201910 31"March, 2020

Date of Book Closure : 29" September, 20200 30" September, 2020 (Both days Inclusive)
ListingonStockExchange :  BSE Limited, Mumbal

Listing fees paid timely ;' Yesbutlate

Stock Code 1 521188

DematISINInNSOL&CDSL:  INE727E01012

FInanclal Calendar :  The Board of Director of the Company approves audited/unaudited results for

each quarter within such number of days as may be prescribed under Listing Agreement from time to time.
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Market Price Data : High, Low during each month in the financial year 2019-2020:

NMONTHS HIGH PRICE LOW PRICE

APRIL, 2018 7.93 7.93
MAY, 2019 8.60 7.55
JUNE, 2018 8.27 8.27
JULY, 2019 8.27 7.86
AUGUST, 2018 8.27 7.86
SEPTEMBER, 2019 7.86 7.75
OCTORER, 2018 7.75 7.75
NOVEMBER, 2015 7.75 7.50
DECEMBER, 2019 7.50 7.13
JANUARY, 2020 7.13 7.12
FEBRUARY, 2020 7.12 7.12
MARCH, 2020 7.12 7.12

These datais from BSE Site :www.bseindia.com

Reconcdliation of Shara Capital Audit

A Chartered Accountants carrled out the Share Capital Reconclllation Audit to reconcile the total Issued and pald up
capital with National Securities Depository Limited {NSDL) and Central Depository Services {India) Limited {CDSL)
with the total issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid up capital is in agreement with
the total number of Shares in the physical form and the total number of dematerlalized shares held with NSDL and
CD5L.

Registrar & Transfer Agent {RTA}

All the works relating to the shares registry both for the shares held in the physical as well in the electronic form
{demat) are being done at the single point and for this purpose SEBI Reglstered Category - | Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent has been appointed w.e.f, 01/05/2003 whose address sas under :-

INDUS PORTFOLIO PRIVATE LIMITED

G-65, BALI NAGAR

New Delhl-110015

Tel.No. :011-47671217,011-47671214,011-47671206

Email : janan.m@indusinvest.comn

Share Transfer System

63.13% of the equlty shares of the Company are in electronic form. Transfer of these shares are done through the
depositories with no involvement of the Company. As regards transfer of shares held in physical form the transfer
documents can be lodged with Indus Porifolio Private limited at the above mentioned address.

With regard to transfer of equity shares In physical form, the shares transfer instrument, recelved In physical form,
are processed by our R&T Agents, Indus Portfollo Private imited & the shares certificates are dispatched withIna
period of 30 days from the day of receipt thereafter subject to the documents being complete and valid in all
respects.

As per the requirement of Regulation 40(9) of SEBI Usting Regulation , company has regularly obtained the
necessary certificate from a company secretary In practice and submitted the same to BSE Limited on half-yearly
basis, confirming due compliance of share transfer related activities by the Company.

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2020:

No. of equity shares held Total Holders | % of share | No. of shares % of share
holder held holding_
Upto 500 3698 89.39 487236 16.24
501 to 1000 201 4.86 165012 5.50
1001 to 5000 156 3.77 370928 12.36
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5001 to 10000 41 0.99 296050 9.87
10001 to 20000 16 0.38 251914 8.40
20001 to 30000 4 0.10 95800 3.33
30001 to 40000 8 0.1 274700 9.16
40001 to 50000 3 0.07 143500 4.78
50001 to 100000 & 0.15 412483 13.75
100001 and above 4 0.10 498377 16.61
TOTAL 4137 100.00 3000000 100.00

Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2020:

Category No. of Shares % of Paid-up Capital
Indian Promoters 962433 32.08
Private Corporate Bodies 44747 1.49
Indian Public 1992820 66.43
TOTAL 30,00,000 100.00
Dematerialisation of Shares As on 31" March, 2020, 18,93,975 shares {63.13%} are in Electronic Form
and 11,06,025 shares {36.87%) are in Physical Form.
PlantLocation : 7"K.M. Stone Barwala Road, Hisar—125001 (Haryana)
Address forCorrespondence United Textlles Limited
7"K.M.Stone, Barwala Road, Hisar—125 001 {Haryana)
CIN — L17115HR1993PLCO32092
Ph. 9812761843 Emall :unitedtextilesitd@gmall.com
Compllance Officer H The name and designation of the Compliance Officer of the company ason
date is Sh. Amit Kumar Aggarwal Executive Director of the company
Compllance : Compliance certificate obtained from the Auditors is attached to this

REGISTERED OFFICE:
7thK.M. Stone
Barwala Road, Hisar—125001

Date :10"July,2020
Ph. 1 9812761843

report.

FORAND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Shalini Aggarwal Arun Kumar Aggarwal
{Director) {Executive Director)
DIN-00248510 DIN-00248578

CIN  :L17115HR1993PLC032092
Email : unitedtextilesltd@gmail.com
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

To
The Board of Directors
UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

I, Arun Kumar Aggarwal, Chief Financial Officer of UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED cefyi that :

| have reviewed the financial statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 ™ March, 2020
and to the best of our knowledge and belief :

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any materlal factor  contain
statements that might be misleading.

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with ex|sting accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

3. To the best of our knowledge and belie f, no transactions entered into by the company during the year
ended 31* March, 2020 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

4. | accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining Internal controls for financlal rep  orting and that
we have evaluated the effectiveness of Internal control system of the Company pertalning to financlal
reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of such internal controls , if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
propose to take to rectify these deficiencles.

5. | further certify that we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee :

a) There have been no Significant changes in Internal contr ol over financlal reporting system during
the year.

b) There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year except for the
changes disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, if any; and

¢} There have been no Instance s of fraud, of which we have become aware and the Involvement
therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's
internal control system over financial reporting.

PLACE :HISAR Arun Kumar Aggarwal
Date : I.OT"luIv, 2020 {CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER}
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

{pursuant to Regulation 34{3} and Schedule V Para C clause {10){i) of the SEB! {Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures
received from the Directors of United Textiles Limited having CIN
L17115HR1993PLC032092 and having registered office at 7"K.M.StoneBarwala Road,
Hisar-125001 {(Haryana) (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before
me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10{i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations,2015.

In our copinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications
{including Directors Identification Number {DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in} as
considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers,
We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated
below for the Financial Year ending on 31th March, 2020 have been debarred or
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other

Statutory.
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment
in Company
1 ARUN KUMAR AGARWAL 0000248510 01/03/1997
2 SHALIN| AGGARWA 0000248578 25/08/2005
3 AMIT BANSAL 0008623244 13/11/2019
4 SANDEEP GARG 0008622421 13/11/2019
5 AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL 0007079171 13/02/2020

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appeintment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these based on our verification. This certificate is nelther an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted

the affairs of the Company.
Anju Jain
Place :Hisar Practicing Company Secretary
Date :09/06/2020 ACS5: 11056 C.P. No: 2728

UDIN Number: A011056B000327504
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ERTIFICATE REGARDIN MPLIANCE QF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members,
United Textiles Limited,

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance by United Textiles
Limited {("the Company”) for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2020, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to
27 and clauses {b) to {l) of Regulation 46{2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securlties and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
[hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations®].

The compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management
of the Company. Our examination was limited to review of the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the said Regulations. It is neither audit nor an expression of the opinion on the Financial
Statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned "Listing Regulations” as
applicable duringthe year ended 31* March, 2020.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For N.C. Aggarwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 003273N

G.K. Aggarwal
(Partner}

Place: New Delhi M. No, 086622
UDIN:20086622AAABDY3267



UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Membaers of UNITED TEXTILE LIMITED

Reporton the Financlal Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statement of UNITED TEXTILE LIMITED {“the
Company”),which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss {Including
Other Comprehenslve Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financlal statements glve the Information required by the Companles Act, 2013 {"the Act”) In the
manner so required and glve a true and falr view In conformity with the accounting principles generally acceptedin
India of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143{10) of the Act.
Our responsibllities under those Standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audlt of the
Standalone financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audlt of the standalone financlal statements under the provisions of the Companiles Act, 2013
and the Rule thereunder, and we have fukfilled our ethlcal responsibillties in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis of our opinion.

Management's Responsibllityfor the Financlal Statements

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Companyin
accordance with the AS and other accounting principles generally accepted In Indla. This respansibllity also Includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
Implementation and malntenance of adequate Internal financlal controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financlal statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company's ablllty to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative butto do so.

The Board of Directors Is also responslble for overseelng the Company's financlal reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due tofraud orerror, and to issue an auditor's report thatincludes our
opinlon. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
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influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
As part of an audlt In accardance with SAs, we exerclse professional Judgment and malntaln professional skepticlsm
throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of materlal misstatement of the standalone financlal statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaln audit
evidence that [s sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basls for our opinlon. The risk of not detecting a
materlal misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for ane resulting from error, as fraud may
Involve colluslon, forgery, Intentional omisslons, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal cantrol.

 Obtaln an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in orderto design audit procedures thatare
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143{3){l} of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system In place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

: Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management,

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
onthe audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
apinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events Ina mannerthat achieves fair presentation.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone
financlal statements may be Influenced. We conslder quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {[} planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i1} to evaluate the effect of any Identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and slgnificant audit findings, Including any significant deficlencles In Internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thoughtto bear on our Independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter orwhen, In extremely rare clrcumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order*} Issued by the Central
Government of Indla in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we glve In the Annexure ‘A’ a
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2.
{a)

staternent on the matters specified in the paragraph 2 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Asrequired by Section 143 {3) of the Act, we report that:
We have sought and obtalned all the Information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

ib)
(c)
(d)
(e}

(=)
11

(h)

In our opinien, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those bocks;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companles {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

On the basls of the written representations recelved from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, referto Annexure 'B'.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule

of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations givento us:

The Company does not have any pending Ildgations which would Impact its financlal position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
bythe Company;

The Company has pald/provided for managerlal remuneration to whole-ime director In accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provislons of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companles Act,
2013.

For P.C. Goyal& Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002368N

{M.P. Jain}

Partner

M. No, 082407

Dated: 10™uly,2020

Place: Hisar
UDIN:20082407AAAAALIBBEB
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
{Annexure referred to In aur report of even date to the members of UNITED TEXTILED LIMITED on the accounts for
the year ended March 31, 2020)

1.

{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative detailsand
sltuation of fixed assets.

{b} The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the management during the year and
we are informed that no serious discrepancies have been noticed by the management on such
verffication.

{c} According to the information and the explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds ofimmovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

The management has conducted physical verification of Inventory at reasonable Intervals during the year.
On the basis of our examination of the inventory records, in our opinion, the Company is maintaining
proper records of inventories. The discrepancies noticed during physical verification of inventories as
compared to book records were not material and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of
account.

According to the infermation and the explanations given to us, the company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register malntalned under section 189 of the Companles Act 2013, Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(iii} {a), 3Miii) {b) and 3(iii} (c) of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented
upon.

The Company has not grantedany loans or glven any guarantee and securlty covered under Section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3{iv) of the order are not
applicable tothe company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits under the
provislons of section 73 to 76 of the Companles Act, 2013 or any other relevant provislons of the
companies Act and the Companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time.
No order has been passed with respect to Section 73 to 76, by the Company Law Board or Naticnal
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of Indla or any Court or any other tribunal.

According to the Informatian and explanations glven to us, the maintenance of cost records as specified by
the Central Government under sub-section {I) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable
tothe company.

{a} According to the information and explanations glven to us, the Company [s generally regular In
depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues as applicable to the Company L.e.
provident fund, income tax and goods 8 service tax. There are no arrears as at 31st March, 2020 for a
period of mare than six months from the date they become payable.

{k} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues In respect of
income tax and goods and service tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on
account of any dispute. To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company does not have any
otherstatutory duesi.e. wealth tax, duty of customs as mentioned in para [vii} {b) of the Order.

In our opinlon, on the basls of books and records examined by us and according to the information and
explanations glven to us, the company has not defaulted In repayment of dues to financlal Institutions and
banks. The company does not have any dues to government and debenture holders.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer or debt
instruments. In our apinion, and according to the Information and explanation glven to us, the term loans

(33)



UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

10.

11,

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

have been applied for the purposes for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment
pending allocation.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the Management and
based on our examination of the books and records of the Company and in accordance with generally
accepted auditing practices In Indla, we have been Informed that no case of frauds has been committed on
or by the Company or by its officers or employees during the year.

The Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration to whole-time director in accordance with
the requlsite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companles

Act, 2013.

The company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 {xii) of the Order are not
applicabletothe Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of Act, and where applicable the details have been disclosed in the
Financlal Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private allotment of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 {xiv} of the Grder are not
applicabletothe Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected
with him as covered under Section 192 of the Companles Act, 2013. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 {xv)
ofthe Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of Indla, 1934. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xiv] of the
Order are not applicable tothe Company.

For P.C. Goyal& Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002368N

{M.P. Jain)

Partner

M. No. 082407

Dated: 10™July,2020

Place: Hisar

UDIN: 20082407AAAAAUGBERB
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ANNEXURE-BTO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in our Independent
Auditor's Report to themembers of the Company on the Financlal Statements for the year ended March
31,2020.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of UNITED TEXTILE LIMITED
{“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Intemal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the Internal control over financlal reporting criterla established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate Internal financlal controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.({The “Act” or the “Companies Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsiblility 1s to express an opinlon on the Company's Internal financial controls over financlal
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, , both issued by
the ICAIl Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively In all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financlal controls over financial reporting included obtalning an understanding of internal financlal
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due tofraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
ouraudlt opinion on the Company's Internal financlal controls system overfinanclal reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's Internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A Company's Internal financlal control over financlal reporting Includes those policles and procedures
that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only In accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, ordisposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect onthe financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrals over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compllance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financlal reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

For P.C. Goyal& Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002368N

{M.P. lain)

Partner

M. No. 082407

Dated: 10")uly,2020

Place: Hisar

UDIN: 20082407AAAAAUGH68
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Balance Sheet as at March31.2020
CIN No. L17115HR1993PLC032092 _ {Amount in Rs)
Particulars Note Az at Asat
No March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
L | ASSETS
{1) |Non-current assets
(a} Property, Plantand Equipment 1 108,661,196 94,651,972
(b} Capital work-in-progress - -
(€] Finanrial Asgets
(1) Other PFinanclal Assets 2 1,706,836 1,403,121
[Z) [Current assets
[a) Inventories 3 41,427,985 36,154,319
[b) Financial Assets
{1} Trade Recetvables 4 14,464,165 9,542,417
[ii) Cash and cash equivalents 5 533,828 223412
(ill) Bank balances other than () above 6 1,749,792 1,618,527
(iv) Other Financial Assets 7 39,358 30,609
(€] Current Tax Assets (Net) ] 32,197 -
[d} Other Current Assets ] 6,034,908 2,254,388

174,650,265 145,888,766

10 30,000,000 30,000,000
74361852 73,086,001
11 11,079,675 -
12 289,008 506,645
{1) Borrowings 13 26,811,137 25,964,205
(ii) Trade payables 14 22,551,098 11,084,670
{1i1) Other financial Hahilites 15 5,100,932 4,234,901
(b) Current Tax Liabilitles (Net) 16 15,151 167,712
[c] Other Current Liabilities 17 4437567 34,105
[d)Provisiens 18 3,845 10,526
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 174,650,265 145,008,766 |
Significant accounting policies and nates to the financlal 27
statements
In terms of our report of even date annexad hereto
For P.C. Goyal & Co., ARUN KUMAR AGGARWAL
Chartered Accountants {Whole-time Director)
Firm Registration No. 002368N DIN No: 00248510
{M.P. Jain) SHALINI AGGARWAL
Partner (Mrector)
M. No. 082407 DIN No: 00248578
Place : Hisar
Date:July 10,2020
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; — Lk - {Amount In Rs.)
Partkulars Note Year Ended Year Ended
No. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
[ [Revenue from operations (Gross) 19 89,272,553 67,565,065
Less : Exclse Duty - -
Revenue from operations (Net) 89,272,553 67,565,065
{If) Jother ncome 20 258,627 168921
{01} [Total Revenue [IHI) #9,531,100 67,733,985
(V) |Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 21 68,303,837 44,687,968
Changes In nventories of finished goods, work in 22 (6,705,965} (418,520
progress and Stodk-in-trade
Employes benefits expense 23 2,931,964 2,783,816
Flnance coxta 24 2,991,029 2,541,199
Depreciation and amortisation expenze 25 2,519,787 2,952,206
(ther expensey 26
Manufacturing Expenzes 17,619,250 13,308,119
Office and Administration Expenses 1452803 1,551,756
Selling and distribution expenses 76,500 50,900
Miscellaneons Expenses _204,394 158,284
Total Expenses 65,394,099 67,615,728
(v} [Profit before tax (II-IV) 137,081 118,258
vI) expenae:
(1) Current tax - 167,000
(2) Deferred tax -
(3) Tax related to previons year 2,020 4,389
{vID) [Profit for the year after tax (V-VT) 135,061 (53,131)
Other Comprehensive Income
(1) Items that will not be reclagsified to
profit or logs
(a)Re-measurement gains (losses} on deflned benefit 340,790 67,711
lans
Incomea tax effect on above [17,605)
(b}Equity Instrumemts through Other Comprehensive - -
Income(Gain on Fair waluation of Long Term
Investment}
Income tax effect on above b -
Total Other Comprehensive Income aﬁ,'mo 50,106
Total Comprehenstve Income for the year 475851 {3,025)
{VIII) |Earnings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10/- each.
[1) Baslc 0.16 {0.001)
(2) Dilutad 0.16 {0.001)
Significant ecounting policies and notes to the financal 27
statements
In terms of our report of even date annexed hereto
For PC. Goyal & Co., ARUN EUMAR AGGAHWAL
Chartered Accountants (Whole-time Directur)

Firm Registration No. D02368N

(MLF. Jaln)
Partner

M. No. 0B2407
Place : Hisar
Date:july 10,2020
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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

Notes forming part of Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss

DESCRIPTION Asat An at
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
2 |Other Non Cwrent Finandal Assets
Security Deposits
Unsecured, Conaidered good 1,706,836 1,403,121
[Total Other Non Current Flnancial Assets 1,706,006 1403,121
DESCRIFTION As at March 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019
3 |loventories
Raw Materials 25,079,925 27,546,898
‘Work in Progreas B40,000 840,000
Finished Goods 8,318,810 3,784,295
Store and Spares 4,014,150 2,989,475
Scrap 3,175,100 1,003,650
|Total loventvries 41,427,985 36,164,319
DESCRIPTION As at March 31.2020 | As at March 31, 2019
4 |Trade Recelvables
Unsecured, Considerad good 14,464,165 9,542,417
Total Traide Recetvabl 14,464,165 0,542,417
DESCRIPTION An at March 31,2020 | AsatMareh 31, 2019
5 |Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand 429,577 193,751
Balances with Banks
Current Accounts 104,252 29,661
‘Total Cash and Cash Equivalent 533,828 223,412
DESCRIPTION As at March 31,2020 | As atMarch 31, 2019
& |Other Bank Balances
B. |Other Bank Balance
Fixed Deposits with Banks of remaining maturity of more than three months) 1,749,792 1,618,527
(but less than twelve months*
I'l'btnl Cash and Bank Balances 1,749,792 618,527
*Pledge with Government Authoritdes
DESCRIFTION As gt March 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019
7 |Other Current Financial Assets
Interest Recelvable 39,358 30,609
[ Total Other Current Finandal Assets 59,358 30,609
DESCRIFTION As at March 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019
8 | Corrent Tax Assets
Advance Tax (Net of Provision) - -
provision
Tax Recetvables 32,197
Total Current Tax Assets 32,197 -




UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

DESCRIPTION As atMarch 31,2020 | As at Macch 31, 2019
9 |Other Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses 122,890 24,777
(Advance Recoverable in Cash orin kind
Unsecured, Considered good 5,711,278 1,094,497
Advance to vendor 200,740 1,135,114
Prepaid Bank Charges - -
Total Other Current Assets 6,034,208 2,254,388
DESCRIPTION As atMarch 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019
10 |SHARE CAPITAL
(a) |AUTHORISED CAPITAL
32,50,000 Equity Shares of Bs. 10/- Each 32,500,000 32,500,000
32,500,000 32,500,000
(b) |ISSUED, SUBSCRIEED AND PAID UP
30,00,000 Equity Shares of Bs. 10/- Each 30,000,000 30,000,000
(c) |RECONCILIATION OF THE NUMEER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING AT THE
BEGINNING AND' AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,000,000 3,000,000
Shares cutstanding at the end of the year 3,000,000 3,000,000
(d) Dretails of Shareholding move than 5% shares in the company
% of shareholding as | % ofshareholding as
SHo. |Name of shareholders on 31.03.2019 on 31.03.2017
NIL NIL
(e) JAggregate npumber of boows shares issuwed, share issued for
censideration other than cash and shares bought back during the NIL NIL
peried of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:
DESCRIPTION As atMarch 31,2020 | As at Macch 31, 2019
|RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Profit/ {(Loss) Brought Forward 73,886,001 73,889,028
Add: Fair value of land under property, plant and equipment under transitign to IND AS -
Add:- Profit after tax transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 475,851 (3,025)
Less:- Previous Year Taxation Adjustments -
Less:- Adjustment of Depreciation as per Revised Companies Act, 2013 - -
where useful life of asset is Nil
ﬁotallleserves and Surplus 74,361,852 73,886,001
DESCRIPTION As atMatch 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019
11 [Nen Current Berrowings
Secured Long Tertn Botrrowings
Term Loan From Bank against Machinery®* 10,519,571 -
Loan for Vehicle 560,104 -
Total Nen Current Borrowings 11,079,675 -

*Machinery loan is secured by way of hypothecation of Fixed Assets of the company. The loan is repayable in equated monthly

instalment of Bs. 2,41,717 /- pm.
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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

DESCRIPTION
As atMarch 31,2020 | As at Macch 31, 2019
12 |Non Current Provisions
For Empleyee BEenefits
Gratuity {unfunded) 289,008 506,645
Total Non Current Provisions 289,008 506,645
DESCRIPTION
As atMarch 31,2020 | As at Macch 31, 2019
13 |Current Borrowings
A |Secured Short Term Berrowings
‘Working Capital Demand Loan from Bank®* 19,599,920 19,244,945
Term Loan From bank against fixed deposit 4,611,217 4,151,457
B [Unsecured Shert Term Borrowings
Loan from Directors 2,200,000 2,567,800
Total Curcent Borrowings 26,811,137 25,964,206
*Working Capital Facility is secured by way of hypothecation of stock and book debts of the Company namely finished good,
raw material, work in progress, consumable stores and spares, book debts, bill receivables and by way of First charge in
respect of other moveable and immoveable properties of the Company. Working Capital Facility is repayable on demand any
time during sancticn tenure,
DESCRIPTION
As atMarch 31,2020 | As at Macch 31, 2019
14 |TRADE PAYAELES
Dues to Micro and Small enterprises - -
Dues to other than Micro and Small enterprises 22,551,098 11,084,670
Total Trade Payables 22,551,098 11,084,670
DESCRIPTION
As atMarch 31,2020 | As at Macch 31, 2019
15 |OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIAEBILITIES
Current Maturities of Long Term debts 2,329,403 909,266
Other Payables
Gther liabilities 2,771,529 3,325,635
Tetal Other Current Financial Liabilities 5,100,932 4,234,901
DESCRIPTION As at As at
Martch 31,2020 March 31,2019
16 JCURRENT TAX LIAEILITIES
Provision for Income Tax{net) 15,151 167,712
Total Carrent Tax Liabilities 15,151 -
DESCRIPTION
As atMarch 31,2020 | As at Macch 31, 2019
17 |OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Customers 4,391,568 -
Statutory Dues Fayable 45,999 34,105
Tetal Other Current Liabilities 4,437,567 34,105
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DESCRIPTION As atMarch 31,2020 | As at March 31, 2019
18 |Current Provisions
a) For Employee Benefits
Gratuity (Unfunded) 3,845 10,526
ﬁotalCurrent Provisiocns 3,845 1[),52_6
DESCRIPTION Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

19

Gross Revenue from Operation

Sale of Product

Sales from Operations 89,133,361 66,785,703
QOther Qperating Revenue
Hank Yarn Obligation Transfer 35,192 779,362
Miscellaneous Receipt/ Sales 104,000 -
Total Gross Revenue from Operation 89,272,553 67,565,065
() |SALES
|Manufactured Goods
Cotton Yarn 81,660,571 63,203,034
Scrap 7,472,790 3,582,619
Total Sales 89,133,361 66,785,703
DESCRIPTION Year Ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
2020 2019
20 |Other Income
Interest Income on Fixed Deposits/Security Deposit 185,208 168,921
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 71,369 -
Cash Dscount Received - -
Insurance Claim received - -
Liabilties written back (INCOME TAX REFUND ] 2,050 -
Total Other Income 258,627 168,921
DESCRIPTION Year Ended March 31, | Year Ended March 31,
2020 2019
21 |Cost of Material Consumed
Raw Material Consumed 68,303,837 44,687,968
Total Cost of Material Consumed 68,303,837 44,687,068
[DETAIL OF RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED
Waste Cotton 68,303,537 44,687,968
Total Raw Material Consumed 68,303,837 44,687,068
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DESCRIPTION Year Ended March 31,] Year Ended Mardch 31,
2020 2019
22 |Changes in inventeries of finished goods, work in progress and Stock-
in-trade
Opening Stock
Finished Goods- Manufactured 3,784,295 4,025,300
Scrap 1,003,650 344,125
Workin Progress 840,000 840,000
Total Opening Stock 5,627,945 5,209,425
Closing Stock
Finished Goods- Manufactured 8,318,810 3,784,295
Scrap 3,175,100 1,003,650
Workin Progress 840,000 840,000
[Total Closing Stock 12,333,910 5,627,945
{Increase)/Decrease in Stock (6,705,965)) (418,520))
DESCRIPTION Year Ended March 31,] Year Ended Mardch 31,
2020 2019
23 |Employee Benefits Expenses
Salary and Wages 2,728,239 2,588,128
Contribution to provident and other funds 194,506 184,348
Staff Welfare Expenses 9,219 11,340
ﬁotalEmployee Benefits Expenses 2,931,964 2,763,816
DESCRIPTION Year Ended March 31,] Year Ended Mardh 31,
2020 2019
24 |Finance Cost
Interest Expenses
Term Loan 838,225 649,558
Working Capital 1,981,617 1,852,720
Other Interest 44,729 20
Bank Charges 126,459 38,891
ITotal Finance Cost 2,991,029 2,541,199
DESCRIPTION Year Ended March 31,| Year Ended March 31,
2020 2019
25 |Depreciation and Amertisation
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 2,519,787 2,952,206
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 2,519,787 2,952,206
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DESCRIPTION Year Ended March 31,] Year Ended March 31,
2020 2019
26 |Other Expenses
A |Manufacturing Expenses
Power and Fuel 12,051,375 10,725,183
Repairs to machinery 1,291,619 2,000
Repair & Mtc. (Shed & Building) 43,133 -
Consumpton of Stores and Spare parts 3,351,922 2,140,681
Packing Material 881,201 440,256
Total Manufacturing Expenses 17,619,250 13,308,120
B |Office and Administration Expenses
Insurance 121,093 104,306
Legal and Professional 333,450 77,100
Postage and Telephone 60,738 85,573
Printing and Stationary 38,140 -
Vehicle Upkeep and Maintenance 30,038 34,850
Sales Tax paid against Assessment 142,165 184,935
Auditor's Remuneration
Audit Fees 45,000 45,000
Fees and Subscription 277,177 428,231
Computer Maintenance 84,000 84,000
Annual Listing Fees 317,542 267,763
Director's Remuneration - 240,000
Travelling & Convenence Afc 3,460 -
Total Office and Administratien Expenses 1,452,803 1,551,758
C |Selling and Distribution Expenses
Commission On Sales - -
Advertisement and Publicity 76,500 50,990
Total Selling and Distribution Expenses 76,500 50,990
D |Miscellanecus Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenses 204,894 158,284
Total Miscellanecus Expenses 204,894 158,284
Total Other Expenses {A+B+C+D) 19,353,447 15,069,152
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UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policles and Notes of FInanclal Statement

Note No-27

1. Corporate and General Information

United Textiles Limited {“UTL)" or {"the Company") is domiciled and incorporated in India. The Company is engaged
inthe business of manufacturing of cotton yarn.

2.Basls of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared complying in all material respects with the Indian Accounting
Standards {IndAS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies {Accounts) Rule 2015. The financial statements comply with IND AS notified by Ministry of Company
Affalrs ("MCA”). The Company has consistently applied the accounting policles used In the preparation for all
perlods presented.

The significant accounting policies used in preparing the financial statements are set out in Note no.3 of the Notes to
the Financial Statements.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions. Actual
results could vary from these estimates. The estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an on-golng
hasls. Revislons to accounting estimates are recognised in the period In which the estimates are revised If the
revision effects only that period orin the pericd of the revision and future pericds if the revision affects both current
and future years {refer Note no.4 on critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements).

3.0Signlficant Accounting Policles

3.1 Basls of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except
following which have been measured atfairvalue :

- Certaln financial assets and llabllities except borrowings carried at amortised cost,

- defined benefit plans—plan assets measurad at falrvalue,

-Land under Property, plantand equipment ontransition to IND AS

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipmenta) Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost{except Land which is
measured at fair value on the date of transition to IND AS) less accumulated depreclaton and accumulated
Impalrment losses, If any. Cost Includes expendfture that Is directly attributable to the acquisition of the Items.

For transition to IND AS, the Company has adopted optional exception under IND AS 101 to measure land underthe
head “Property, Plant and Equipment” at fair value. Consequently the fair value has been assumed to be deemed
cost of Land under “Property, Plant and Equipment™ on the date of transition {1* April, 2016}. Subsequently
Property, Plant and Equipment are carrled at cost less accumulated depreclation and accumulated Impalrment
losses, If any. Costincludes expenditure that Is directly attributable to the acquisition of the lbems. Borrowling Cost {If
any) during the period of construction is added to the cost of eligible tangible assets.

b) Depreciation is provided on Written down Value Method over the remaining useful life of the assets in the manner
prescribed in Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013.

c) The galn or loss arlsing on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipmentIs determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrylng amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

3.3 Intangible Assets

Identifiable Intanglble assets are recognised:

a)when the Company controls the asset,

b} itis probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the Company and

¢} the cost ofthe asset can be rellably measured.

Computer software's are capltallsed at the amounts pald to acquire the respective license for use and are amortised
over the period of license, generally not exceeding five years on straight line basis. The assets' useful lives are
reviewed at each financial year end.

3.4 Impairment of non-current assets

An asset Is consldered as Impalred when at the date of Balance Sheet there are Indications of Impalrment and the
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carrying amount of the asset, or where applicable the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs exceeds Its
recoverable amount {l.e. the higher of the net asset selling price and value In use).The carrylng amount Is reduced to
the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change inthe estimate
of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying value of the impaired
asset over its remalning useful life.

3.5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes Cash on hand and at bank, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commktments.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents conslsts of cash and short term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdraft as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash
managemen‘t.

3.6Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value except scrap, which Is valued at net realizable
value, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of inventories comprises of cost of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their respective present location
and condition. Costls computed an the welghted average basls.

3.7 Employee benefits

a) Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in
which the related services are rendered.

b} Leave encashment belng a short term benefit Is accounted for using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the
hasls of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to profit
and loss in the period in which they arise.

¢} Contribution to Provident Fund, a defined contribution plan, is made in accordance with the statute, and s
recognised as an expense In the year In which employees have rendered services.

d} The cost of providing gratuity, a defined benefit plans, is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on
the basis of actuarial valuations carried out by third party actuaries at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gainsand
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to Other
Comprehensive Income in the perlod Inwhich they arise. Cther costs are accounted In statement of profit and loss.
3.8 Forelgn curtencyreinstatement and translation

{a) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees ,which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

{b) Transactions and balances

The Company does not have any foreign currency transactions and therefore, exchange risk including foreign
currency sensitivity is not applicable.

3.9 FInanclal Instruments - Initdal recognition, subsequent measurement and Impalrment

Afinanclal Instrument Is any contract that glves rise to a financlal asset of one entity and a financial liabllity or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction cost that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or financial liabilities {Other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss account ) are added to or deducted from fair value
measured Inldal recognltion of financlal asset orfinanclal liabllity.

Financial Assets and liabllities are measured at amortised cost or falr value through Other Comprehensive Income or
fair value through Prgfit or Loss, depending on its business model for managing those financial assets and liabilities
and the assets and liabilities contractual cash flow characteristics.
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Financlal Assets at amortised cost

Financlal assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost If these financlal assets are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest amount
outstanding.

Financlal Assets at falr value through other comprehenslve Income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income if these financial assets are held
within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding and selling financial assets.

Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it Is measured at amortised cost or at falr
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction cost directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets and liability at fair value thorough profit or loss are immediately recognised in profitor
loss.

Financlal LUabilites

Financial liabilities including interest bearing loans and borrowings and trade payables are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate methed (EIR) except those designated in an effective hedging
relationship.

Amortised cost Is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acgulsition and fee or costs that are
anIntegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is Included In finance costs In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.10 Bormowing costs

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets that necessarily takes a
substantial perfod of ime to get ready for Its Intended use are capltalized (net of Income on tempaorarlly deployment
of funds) as part of the cost of such assets .Borrowlng costs consist of Interest and other costs that the Company
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalization
rate is the welghted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Company that are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowlings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifylng
asset, The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost
incurred during that period.

All other borrowlIng costs are expensed in the perlod in which they ocour.

3.11Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax {including MAT). Tax is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in such cases the taxis also recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Any subsequent change In direct tax on Items Inially recognised In equlty or other comprehensive Income Is also
recognised in equity or other comprehensive Income, such change could be for change In tax rate.

Current tax provision is computed for Income calculated after considering allowances and exemptions under the
provisions of the applicable Income Tax Laws. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are off set, and presented
asnet.

Deferred tax Is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and llabllites In the Balance sheet
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the liability
method. Deferred tax liabilites are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances to
the extent that it Is probable that future taxable profits will be avallable agalnst which those deductible temporary
differences, carry forward tax losses and allowances can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and llabllities are measured
atthe applicable taxrates. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set, and presented as net.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
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no lenger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Minimum Alternative Tax {MAT} is applicable to the Company. Credit of MAT is recognised as an asset only whenand
to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period,
i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes
eligible to be recognised as an asset, the sald asset [s created by way of a credit to the profit and lossaccount and
shown as MAT credit entltlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the
carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

3.12 Revenue recognition and other income

Sale of Goods

Revenue is recognized at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and represents the net invoice value
of goods supplied to third parties after deducting discounts, volume rebates and outgoing sales tax and are
recognized either on delivery or on transfer of significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods. Material
returned/ reJected Is accounted for in the year of return/ rejection.

Interest

Interest income is recagnised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

3.13 Eamings pershare

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders {after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to
the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting
year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

3.14 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a rellable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money [s materlal, provislons are discounted using equlvalent perlod government securities Interest rate.
Unwinding of the discount is recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss as a finance cost. Provislons are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingencdies

Contingent llabllities are disclosed when there [s a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which wlll be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company or a present cbligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
Information on contingent liability is disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements. Contingent assets are not
recognised. However, when the reallsation of income Is virtually certaln, then the related asset Is no longer a
contingent asset, but ItIs recognised asan asset.

3.15Leases

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified asset for a period of time In exchange for
consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:
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() thecontractinvolvesthe use of anidentified asset

{li} the Companyhassubstantally all of the economlc benefits from use of the asset through the perlod of the
leaseand

iii} the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognlses a right-of-use asset {“ROU") and a
corresponding lease liahlllty for all lease arrangements In which it Is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
menths or less (short term leases) and leases of low value assets, For these short term and leases of low value assets,
the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. And in case entity is lessor, it identifies whether the lease is defined as finance or operating lease as per the
criterla ghven In Ind As 116. In case of Operating lease, an entity recognlses lease payment as Income on stralght line
hasls In case of Finance lease, an entity Initlal measurement

i} derecognisesthe carrying amount of underlying assets

{ii} recognisethenetinvestmentinlease

() recognise profitand loss on selling profit ar selling loss
and on subsequent measurement, entity recognises finance income over the lease period and reduces the net
investment in the lease for lease payment received and recognise income from any variable lease payments and
recognises any impairment of the net investment in the lease
3.16 Current /non-current classHication
The Company presents assets and llabillties in statement of financlal position based on current/non-current
classification.
The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity, non-current liabilities and current
liabllites in accordance with Schedule 111, Division || of Companies Act, 2013 notified by MCA.
Anassetlsclassifled as currentwhenltls :

a)  Expectedtoberealised orintended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

b}  Held primarily forthe purpose of trading,

¢}  Expectedtoberealised within twelve months after the reporting perfod, or

d} Cashorcashequivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a llability for atleast

twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
AllabllityIs classified as currentwhen:

3) [ltisexpected to besettled in normal operatingcycle,

b) Itisheld primarily forthe purpose oftrading,

¢} Iltisduetobesettled within twelve months after the reporting perled, or

d} Therels nounconditional right to defer the settlement of the liakllity for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.

All other [iabilities are classified as non-current.
The operating cycle Is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and thelr reallsation In cash or cash
equivalents.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified 2s non-current assets and liabilities.
4, Critical aceounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
In the process of applylng the Company's accounting policles, management has made the following estimates,
assumptions and judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognised In the financlal statement:
{a) Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated Irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade recelvables are written off when management
deems them not to be collectible.
{b} Incometaxes
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Management Judgment s required for the calculation of provision for Income taxes and deferred tax assets and
liabllitles. The Company revlews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors
used In estimates may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts
reported in the financial statements.
(c) Contingencies
Management judgement Is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, In respect of
contingencies/clalm/|Itigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy,
5. Financial isk management
Financlalrisk factors
The Company's princlpal financlal llabilitles, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The maln purpose of
these financial liabilities is to manage finances for the Company’s operations. The Company has short term current
investments only. The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
i) Market risk
Market risk Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other
risk which is equity price risk and commodity risk.The Company is not exposed to the aforesaid risk as the Company
does not have any transactions in foreign eurrency and its borrowings accounted for on account of preference
capltal is at fixed rate of Interest.
i) CredIt risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss.
Ny Uquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet Its present and future cash and collateral
obligations withourt incurring unacceptable losses.
The Company's averall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.
Market Risk
The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post-
employment benefit obligations provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitvity of the
relevant Statement of Profit and Loss [tem is the effect of the assumed changes In the respective market risks. The
Company's activitles expose k to a varlety of financlal risks, Including the effects of changes In forelgn currency
exchange rates and interest rates. However, such effect is not material.

fa}  Interest rate risk and sensitdvity
The Company does not have any liability for borrowings at floating rate of interest. Hence, interest risk and
sensitivity Is not applicable.

Interest rate & currency of borrowlings
The below table demonstrate the borrowing of fixed and floating rate of interest

{Amount n Rs.)
Particulars Total borrowings Fluating_rate
borrowings
INR 4.,02,20,215 2,91,40,540
Total as at March 31, 2020 4,02,20,215 2,91,40,540
[NR 2,68,73,472 2,68,73,472
Total as at March 31, 2019 2,68,73.472 2,68,73472
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Credit risk
The Company is exposed to credit risk from [ts operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from
its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other financial
instruments.

e TradeReceivables
The Company extends credlt to customers in normal course of business. The Company considers factors
such as credit track record in the market and past dealings for extension of credit to customers. The
Company monitors the payment track record of the customers. Outstanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables
as low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely
independent markets.

The ageing of trade receivable is as below: {AmountinRs.)
et MNeither due nor Past due Foisl
i impaired upto & months ]'E 1012 manths |Abowe 12 menths
Azt March 31,2020
Trade receivable
Lmsmeured . 1,13.24,284 . 31,35 831 144,84 165
Gross Total = 1,13,24,284 - 31,358281 144,51 165
Provision for doubtful - -
Peet Total - 1,13,24,284 - 31,39881 144,564,165
s at March 31,2019
Trade recaivable
Unsecured - B4,02,230 - 3139881 9542417
Gross Total - 6, 02,536 - 31,39 881 9542 417
Provision for doubtful = = =
|Net Total x §4,02,536 - 31,30 881 05,42 417
Liquidity risk

The Company's abjective is 10 maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and
collateral requirements.. In case of temporary short fall in liquidity to repay the bank
borrowing/operational short fall , the company uses mix of capital infusion and borrowing from its
holding company. However, the company envisage that such short fall is temporary and the company
would generate sufficient cash flows as per approved projections.

The table below provides undiscounted cash flows towards non-derivative financlal liabillties Into
relevant maturity based on the remalning period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturlty date.

[Amount in Rs.)

Ageing as an 315t Mareh 2020

Particulass Carying Amount Ondemand Tatral

= & maont s 6-12 months =1 years
Interédt bearing bérromings 40220215 . 2,81, 40540 LAG73.4675 40230215
Trade payabie 2,15 51,098 = 1,75.50,519 24 17,224 20,83,355 23551098
Other Habilites 17,71.528 % 18,83 760 13,150 365,119 37,71529
Tatal B,55437 842 = 1,9445.779 320,770,914 140,758,149 56,5542 8437

Ageingas on 315t March 2013

Particu lars Carrying Amount Ondemand Total

<6 manths B-12 monlhs =1 years
Interest bearing borromin gs YHET1A47T . s 2.BE. 714712 . IEEFIArE
Trade payable 1,10,84 470 . 83.71,778 7,112,882 4,000,000 B 1,510,824 670
Deher lHabilites 3325635 = 15.54,566 3,12850 14,583,213 33325635
Total 4,12 837277 . 1,15,26,344 2,78,99.214 18.53,21% &,1283,777
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The Company is required to maintain ratios {including total debt to EBITDA / net worth, EBITDA to
gross interest, debt service coverage ratio and secured coverage ratio) as mentioned in the loan
agreements at specified levels. In the event of failure to meet any of these ratios these loans become
callable at the option of lenders, except where exemption Is provided by lender.

Capital risk management

The Company aim to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate balance
of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in
proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Company's policy Is to maintain a stable and strong capltal structure with a focus on total equity so
as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth
of its business. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its
capital structure.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital. Net

debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Tha Raaring ratin far FY 2010270 and W1R-100e an nndar

{(Amount in
Particulars As of March 31, 2020 | As of March 31, 2015
Loznsz and barrowings 4,02,20,215 2,68,73,472
Less:cash and cash equivalents 5,33,828 2,23,412
Met debt 3,96,85,387 2,66,50,060
Equity 10,38,856,001 10,38,86,001
Total capital 14,35,72 388 13,05,36,061
Gearing ratio 27.64% 20.42%

6. Falr value of financial assets and liabilities
Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's
financial instruments that are recognised in the financial statements.

i (Ampuntin Rs )
A at MMarch 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
ko chriying Fair Walue CATEVIng Falr Value
armiount amount
-im mutusl funds and others -
Fimancial assets designated ot amortised cost
Fixed depos/ts with banks 1749781 17.48,792 18,18,527 1618527
Cach and bank balancesd 333,628 5.33,828 223,412 2,243,412
Trade and other recelvabies 144 64,165 144,684,165 8542, 7L7 95,422,717
Other fimaneial assets 17,446,194 !?.di,_l_g_: f 14,2._3,75[!- 14,353,730
1.84,93.575 1,84,93 979 1,28 18 386 1,28 18386
Financial llabilitles designated at amortised cost
Borfawing:- 1 oting rate 4.07F 20215 40220215 28873 477 2,68 75 872
Trade & other payables 2.22,01088 2,25.31,098 LI10E4.670 1,10,84.670
Other financial liabilities B T ) 27,791,523 33.33,635 33,25.,635 |
B,55 42 842 6,55,42 847 4,12 B3 777 4,12, 83777
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Falr Value hlerarchy

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned
above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The falr value measurement Is based on the
presumption thatthe transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation
techniques asfollows :

Level 1: Quoted prices/NAV for Identical Instruments In an active market;

Lewvel 2: Directly orindirectly observable market inputs, other than Level 1linputs; and

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as at Balance Sheet date, the classification of fair

When measuring the falr value of an asset or a llabllity, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
Ifthe inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same |evel of the fair value hierarchy as the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement. The Company recognises transfers between levels of
the falr value hierarchy at the end of the reporting perlod during which the change has occurred.

Fairvalue hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company's asset and liabilities, grouped into
Level 1toLevel 2as described below:

Assets / Liabllitles for which falr value Is disclosed

(Amountin Rs.)
As at March 31, 2020

g Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities
Borrowings- floting rate 40220215
Other financial liahilities 27.71,529
; As at March 31, 2019
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities
Borrowings- floting rate 2,68,73472
Other financial liabilities 33,25,635

During the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 falr
value measurements, and no transfer into and out of Level 3 falr value measurements.

Following table describes the valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation for level 2

March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, respectively:

a)  Assets/Llabllitlesforwhich falrvalueIs disclosed

Particulars Fair value hierarchy |Valuation technique  |inputs used
Financial liabilities
Other borrowings- fixed rate Level 2 Discounted Cash Flow  |Prevailing interest rates in

miarked, Future payouts

Other financial liabilities Level 2 Diccountad Cash Flow  |Prevailing interést rates ta
discount luture cash flows
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7.Segment information
Information about primary segmant

Company operates In a Single Primary Segment {Business Segment ) [.e. Cotton Yarn.

Information about Geographical Segment — Secondary

The Company's operations are located in India. The Management has not identified any geographical segment.

£. Incoma tax expanse
{Amount in Rs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year endad
March 31, 2020 harch 31, 2019
Crarrent L 167,000
1,67,000
Deferred tax liabil ity/[Asger)
- Relating to origination & reverssl ol temporary differences
-Relating to change (ntax rata
Tax expense atiributable io current year's profit - —
Adjustments in respect of income Tax of previcus year
- Currant Tan 2,020 4,389
- Deferred Tax Tax - -
2,020 4,389
KAT
Bat Cradit eantitl ement
PaT Credit utilisatian
Toral Tax sxpende 2,020 1,71,389

Effective Tax Reconclllation

Areconciliation of the theoretical income tax expense / (benefit) applicable to the profit / {loss) before income tax at
the statutory tax rate in India to the income tax expense / { benefit] at the Company's effective tax rate is as follows:

{Arnount in Rs]

For the year ended| For the year ended

5.Mo | Deseription Miarch 31, 2020/ March 31, 2019
Mer Loz s|| neoene) before taxes 137081 118258
Enacted tau rates bor parent company 25, 1687 26, 000%
Cornputed T8x |NCome | mpante] 34,501 30,747

Ineresse/iredudtion) in Lakes on account af

1 |Amaount on which no deferred @y created and change in tax rate (Met of disallowance] ~34501 136153
2 |Prewious year Eaxaion 2020 4 389
Income va 9kpanke raported 2,020 171,389

9, Deferred Income tax

There Is not materlal deferred tax asset or llability which can be created on account of reasonable certalnty.

10. Retirement benefit obligations
10.1. Expense recognised for Defined Contribution plan

(Amount inRs)

Particulars Yearended | Yearended
March 31,2020 | March 31, 2019

Company's contribution ta provident fund

1,47,659 121,616
Company's contribution ta ESI

46,807 62,732
Company's contribution to suparannuation fund -
Total

1,94,506 | 1,84,348
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Below tables sets forth the changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets and amounts
recognized in the Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, being the respective

measurement dates:
10.2.Movement In oblization

(amountin 3
Particulars Gratuity| leave encashment
[unfunded) [unfunded)
Present value of obligation - April 1, 2018 4.55,347 -
Current service cost 94,018 =
Interestcost 35,517 -
Benefits paid - -
Rermeasurements - actuarial loss/ (gainj (87 711) =
Present value of obligation - March 31, 2019 517,171 -
Present value of obligation - April 1, 2015 517171 -
Currant service cost 76,857 =
Imterest cost 39,615 -
Benefits paid - =
Remeasurements - actuarial loss/ (gain) -3,40,790 <
Present value of obligation - March 31, 2020 292,853 -
10.3.Movement in Plan Assets — Gratulty
{Amount n 9
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Fairvalue of plan assets at beginning of year =
Expected return on plan assets - .
Emplover contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial gain f [loss) -
Fair value of plan assets st end of year - -
Present value of abligation 282853 517,171
Met funded status of plan 1203853 {5,17,171)
Actual return on plan assets - -

The components of the gratuity &leave encashment cost are as follows:

10.4.Recognised in orofit and loss

{Aamountin T

Particulars Gratuity | Leave encashment
Current Service cost a4 018 g
Interast cost 35,317 -
Expacted return on olan assets -
Remeasurarmant - Ackuarial loss/(gain] . e
For the year ended March 31, 2019 1,229,535

Curremt Service cost TEEBST -
Intarast cost 39 815 -
Expectad return on plan assats - £
|Remeasursment - Actuarial loss/igain] = =
For the year ended March 31, 2020 116472 -
Actual returnon plan sssets =
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10.5.Recognised In other comprehensive Income

{Amount in Bs)
Particulars Gratuity
Remeasurement - Actuarial loss/(gain) (67,711)
For the year ended March 31, 2019 [67,711)
Remeasurement - Actuarial loss/(gain) (3,40,790)
For the year ended March 31, 2020 (3,40,730)

10.6. The principal actuarlal assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations

are set out below:
Woeighted average actuarial assumptions As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2013
Attrition rate = -
Pizcount Rate E.87% PA 766% PA
Expected Rafe of increasein salary 5.50% PA 5.50% PA
Expected Bate of Return on Plan Ascets
Miartality rate lALM 2006-08 lALM 2006-08
LIt i e Uitimate
Expected Average remaining working lives of employees [years) 34.17 years 3417 years

The assumption of future salary increase takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors such as supply and demand in employment market. Same assumptions were considered
for comparative period l.e. 2014-15 as considered In previous GAAP on transitionto IND AS.

10.7.Sensltivity analysis:
For the year ended farch 31, 2019 Il.rm:.ln'ti'n?j
Effect an leave
change " Effact an Gratuiky
Particulars 5 R encashment
Agiumption ohbligation
ablipation

Tiscount rate HU50% 44 481
0,500 50911
Salary Gfowth rale +H1.50% 51,760
-0.50% A5 949

For theyear ended March 31, 2020 {Armnount in %

Effect anfaave
. change in Effect on Gratulty
Particulars encashment
Assumpthon obligation o,
ohligaten

Discount rate +H150% 27993
D505 12,054
Salary Growth rate +1.50% 32,333
R )1 -28,457

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, thisis unllkely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated.
When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the
same method {projected unit credit method) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit
obllgation recognised within the Balance Sheet.

(58)



UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

10.8.History of experience adjustments is as follows:

Plan Acscels - [lass) ealn

iamountin 3
Particulars Gratuity | Leave ancashmant
For the year ended March 31, 2019
Plan Uahilities - (loss)/gain 80,794
Plan Asseis - (loss)fgaln
Far the year ended March 31, 2020
Plan Liabilities - (loss)/gain 3,880,591

Estimate of expected benefit payments (In absolute terms i.e.undiscounted)

[Amountin 3
Particulars Gratuity
0to 1 year 3,845
1 to 2 year 3,776
2 ta 3 year 5264
3to 4 year 5180
410 5 year 5,274
S5ta b year £,295
6 year Onwards 264,219
10.9.5atement of Employes benefit provision

{&mountin ')

Particulars Year ended Yearended

Warch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

S il e ol ~ohetll B e b b ikl

Leave encashment
Other amployee benefits

Total

2,92,853

517,171

2,92,853

517,171

The following table sets aut the funded status of the plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's balance sheet.
10.10.Current and non-current provision for Gratuity and leave encashment

For tha year ended March 31, 2020 {Amount in %)
Particulars Gratuity
Current provision 3,845
MNon current provision 289,008
Tatal Provision 292,853
For the year ended March 31,2019 {Amount in ﬁ
Particulars Gratuity
Current provision 10,526
Moncurrent provision 506,645
Total Provision 517,171
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11. Employee benefit expenses

(Amount in Rs.]

Particulars Yaar ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2018

Salaries and Wages 2728239 25,88,128
Costs-defined contribution plan 1,894,506 1,84,.348
Welfare expenses 821y 11340
Total 2931964 27,83.816
[Figuresin no.)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 20159

|Awerage no. af people employed 21 il

OCI presentation of defined benefit plan

-Gratuity is in the nature of defined benefit plan, Re-measurement gains/{losses) on defined benefit plans is shown
under OCl as Items that wlll not be reclassified to profit or loss and also the Income tax effect on the same.

-Leave encashment costis in the nature of short term employee benefits.

Presentation In Statement of Profit & Loss and Balance Sheet

Expense for service cost, net interest on net defined benefit liability {asset} is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.
IND AS 19 do not require segregation of provision in current and non-current, however net defined liability { Assets)
Is shown as current and non-current provision In balance sheet asperINDAS 1.

Actuarial liablllty for short term benefits (leave encashment cost) Is shown as current and non-current provision In
balance sheet.

The Company assesses these assumptions with [ts projected long-term plans of growth and prevalent Industry
standards. The mortallty rates used are as published by one of the leading life Insurance companles In india.

12. Other disclosures
a) Auditors Remuneration

(Amountin®
. Yaar ended March Year ended
Particulars
31,2020 March 31, 2019
1. Statutory Auditors
i. Audit Fee 45,000 45,000
Total 45,000 45,000
b} Details of loans given, imrestment made and Guaraniees given, covered U/S 186(4) of the Companies
Act 2013.
-The Company has not given any loan, investment and guarantee covered under section 186(4) of the
Companies Act, 2013,

13. Contingent llabllities

The Company does not have any disputed outstanding payable or pending litigation as at 31" March, 2020, which

could have an adverse impact on the results of the operation of the company.

14. Related party transactions
In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, on related party disclosures, name of the related party,
related party relationship, transactions and outstanding balances Including commitments where control exlts
and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods,are:
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Related party name and relationship

Key Management Personnel
Arun Kumar Aggarwal {Whole Time Director)
Shalini Aggarwal {Director)
Vinod Kumar Aggarwal {Director)
Man Mohan Aggarwal {Relative of KMP)
Sushil Kumar Aggarwal {Relative of KMP)

Related Party Transactions:
(Amountin Rs.)
Key Management Personnel and
Description their Relatives

Current Year Previous Year
Salary (Including Allowances)
Arun Kumar Azgarwal Nil 2,440,000
Man Mohan Aggarwal Nil 2,40,000
Related Party Balances:
{Amountin Rs.)
Unsecured Loan CurrentYear Previous Year
Sushil Kumar Aggarwal Nil 3,67.800
Arun Kumar Aggarwal 7,05,000 705,000
Shalini Aggarwal 7,95,000 7,495,000
Vinod Kumar Aggarwal 700,000 -
Other Payables
Arun Kumar Aggarwal 228,600 9,28,600
Man Mohan Aggarwal il 4. 70,400
15. Earnings per share
The following Is a reconcillation of the equity shares used In the computation of baslc and dlluted earnings per
equity share: (Number of shares)
B Year ended March Year ended March
31, 2020 31, 2019
Issuedequity shares 3,000,000 3,000,000
Weighted average shares outstanding - Basic and Diluted -
A 3,000,000 3,000,300
nlet prefie flass) available ts eauity holders of the Compeny ud2d in the basle and diluted samings per share was datermined
as follows;
(Amoun in )
o Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 21,
Particulars 2020 2014
Profit and loss after tax - 8 4,75,851 [3,025)
Basic Earnings per share (B/a) (9 Q16 (.00 1
Dilited Earnings pershare (8/a) 016 o001
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The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the year.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of potential dilutive
equity.

16. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to
current year's classification.

Impactof COVID 19:

COVID-19 has Impacted the normal business operations of the Company by way of Interruption In production,
supply chaln disruption, unavallabllity of persannel, closureflock down of production facllities etc. during the lock-
down period which has been extended till May 31, 2020. However, production and supply of goods has commenced
from May 1, 2020 at the manufacturing location of the Company after obtaining permissions from the appropriate
government authorlties. All necessary precautions relating to hyglene, sanltization, social distancing, care and
protection of the employees would continue to be followed.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the recoverability and
carrying value of its assets comprising property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments, inventory and
trade receivahles. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the
carrying amount of these assets. It has also assessed the probabillity of occurrence of forecasted transactions under
the hedging relationships and continues to evaluate themn as highly probable considering the orders In hand. The
situation is changing rapidly giving rise to in herentun certainty around the extent and timing of the potential future
impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these standalone
financlal results. The Company wlll continue to closely monltor any material changes arising of future economic
conditions and impact on its business.

17.Notes 1 to 27 are annexed and form integral part of Financial Statements.

For P.C. Goyal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002368N

(M.E. Jain)

Partner

gl' g:; T:]i:m 2020 Arun Kumar Aggarwal Shalini Aggarwal

Plaa '.H' July, {Whole-time Director) {Director)
ce: Hisar DIN- 00248510 DIN No: 00248578
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

!Amnu.nt in Rs.!
Year Ended Year Ended
DESCRIPTION March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A [Cash Inflow/ (Outflow) From Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax 137,081 118,258
d/{Less)
Depreclation 2,519,787 2,952,206
Interest Income (165,208)| (168,921)
Interest Expense 2,819,842 2,502,278
Profit on sale of fized assets 71,3_69 -
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 5362,871 5,403,821
ustment for:
Inventories (5,263,666) (12,099,917)
Trade Receivable (4,921,748) 13,274,663
Loan and Advances and other assets (4,215,500), (1,674,330)
Trade and other Payable :ILS].LGDS (2,352,823)
Cash Generated From Qperations Before Tax 7,473,560 2,551,414
Paidl/ Tax Refund 186,777 [16,168)
Net Cash Inflow/ {Outflow) from Qperating Activities 7,286,783 2,535,245
B. |Cash Inflow/ (Outflow) from Investing Activities
guisition of Fixed Assets/Capital Work-in-Progress [17.689,929)] -
Sale of Flxed Asgets 1,400,000 -
Interest Recetved 206,798 458,718
Net Cash Inflow/ (Outflow) from Investing Activities (16,083,131)) 458,718
C. |Cash Inflow/ (Outflow) from Financing Activities
Proceeds / (Repayment) from / of Long term Borrowings (Net) 11,079,675 (886,352)
Proceeds / (Repayment) from / of Short term Borrowlings (Net} 846,931 366,382
Interest Paid (2,819,842)| (2,502,278)
Net Cash Inflow/ {Outflow) from Financing Activities 9,106,764 (3,022,246)|
Net Increase{ Decrease} in Cash and Cash Equivalent [A+B+C) 310,416 (28,285)
d:
Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 223,412 251,697
Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of year 533,028 223,412

Note.

1. Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under Indirect method as set out In IND AS-7 (Cash Flow Statements)

2. Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances with banks.
3. Borrowings from banks is net of repayments.
4. Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash.

Far P.C Goyal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 002368N

(1P Jain)

Parter

M. No. 082407

PLACE : Higar

Date :10th July 2020
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ARUN EUMAR AGGARWAL
[Whole-time Director]
DIN No: 00248510

SHALIN] AGGARWAL
(Director}
DIN No: 00248578
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UNITED TEXTILESLIMITED
Regd. Office & Works: 7th K.M. Stone, Barwala Road, Hisar — 125 001 (Haryana)
PH No. 01662-276182, Fax No. 01662-276182
CIN — L17115HR1993PLC032092, E-mail Id: unitedtextilesitd@gmail.com
Website : http://www.unitedtextleslimited.com
PROXY FORM
{Pursuant to Section 105{6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19({3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

Name of the Folio No. :
Member(s):
DPID:
Registered Cllent 1D :
Address :
e-mall ID :
1/We, being the member{s} holding .......-....coemrrsesnmsesrineee Shares of UNITED TEXTILES LIMITEDhereby appoint :
1. Mr/Ms. Address
E-mail Id Signature
or falling him
2. Mr/Ms. Address
E-mail id Signature
or failing him
3. Mr/Ms. Address
E-mail Id Signature
or falling him

as my/our prosy to attend and vote for mefus on myfour behalf at the 27 Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held
on Wednesday, the 30" day of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. at tts Regd. Office at 7* K.M. Stone, Barwala Road, Hisar - 125 001
and atany adJournment thereof In respect of such resolutions as Indicated below:

Resolution | Description of Resolutions

No. ORDINARY BUSINESS

To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
1 ended 31st March, 2020, together with the Report of the Directors and Auditors' thereon.

To appoint a director in place of Smt. Shalinl Aggarwal { DIN 00248578) who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To regularize Sh. AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL {DIN-07079171)as Director.

To regularize Sh. AMIT BANSAL (DIN-D8623244) as an Independent Director.

L E Y

To regularize Sh. SANDEEP GARG (DINDB622421) as an Independent Director

[+1]

To approve the remuneration payable to Sh. AMIT KUMAR AGGARWAL (DIN-07079171)

AFFIX ONE
RUPEE
REVENUE
STAMP

Slgned this Day of , 2020

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

NOTE: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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UNITED TEXTILESLIMITED

Regd. Office & Works: 7th K.M. Stone, Barwala Road, Hisar — 125 001 {Haryana)

PH No. 01662-276182, Fax No. 01662-276182

CIN —L17115HR1993PLC032092, E-mail Id: unitedtextilesitd@gmail.com

Website : http://www.unitedtextileslimited.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

27" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING on Wednesday ,the 30" day of Sptember,2020 at 11:00 a.m. at 7th

K.M Stone. Barwala Road, Hisar — 125001 {Haryana)

NAME

Address

Registered Folic No./DP Id & Client Id

Shareholder/Proxy/Autharlsed
Representative

MOBILE NO.

E-MAIL ID

I/We hereby record my/our presence at 27" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Compary being held on Wednasday,
the 30" day of September, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. at 7th K.M $tone. Barwala Road, Hisar — 125001 {(Haryana}

Signature of Shareholder/Proxy/Authorised Represe ntative

Nate: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand It over at the entrance of the meeting hall .Members are requested to bring

their copies of the Annual Report to the AGM.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVSN
{E-Voting Sequence Number) USER ID

SEQUENCE NO.

Notes: Please read the instructions printed under the Note no, 14-15 to the notice dated August 31, 2020 of

the 27" Annual General Meeting.




if undeliiverad please retum to:

UNITED TEXTILES LIMITED

REGD. OFFICE: 7th K.M. Stone Barwala Road
HISAR:125001 {Haryana} INDIA



